Congleton Town Council

Historic Market Town
Chief Officer: David McGifford CIiLCA

26" June 2020

To: MEMBERS OF THE FINANCE & POLICY COMMITTEE

Dear Councillor,

Finance and Policy Committee Meeting — Thursday 2" July 2020

You are summoned to attend a meeting of the Finance and Policy Committee to be held on
Thursday 2" July 2020 commencing at 7.00pm.
This will be a virtual meeting which needs to be accessed via Zoom.

The Zoom Meeting ID: 85118635580
The Public and Press are welcome to attend the meeting. To access the meeting please

contact the Responsible Financial Officer — Jackie.Potts@congleton-tc.qov.uk for the relevant
details by 5pm on the day of the meeting.

There may be confidential items towards the end of the meeting which the law requires the
Council to make a resolution to exclude the public and press

Yours sincerely,

David McGifford
Chief Officer

AGENDA
1. Apologies for absence (Members are respectfully reminded of the necessity to submit
any apology for absence in advance and to give a reason for non-attendance).

2. Minutes of Last Meeting (Enclosed)

The minutes of the meeting held on 19" March 2020 were approved by the
COVID-19 Emergency Powers Committee on the 23™ April 2020 and are attached
for reference only.

Congleton

beartown

where friends are made

Congleton Town Council, Town Hall, Hig% Street, Congleton, Cheshire CW12 1BN
Tel: 01260 270350
Email: info@congletontowncouncil.co.uk www.congleton-tc.gov.uk



3. Declarations of Interest

Members are requested to declare both “pecuniary” and “non-pecuniary” interests
as early in the meeting as they become known.

4. Qutstanding Actions

None.

5. Questions from Members of the Public

To receive any questions from Members of the Public including those received in writing
7 days prior to the meeting.

6. Grant Approvals and Commitments 2020/21 (Enclosed)

To receive a statement showing the current position to 31st May 2020.

7. New Applications for Financial Assistance (Enclosed)

e Grant ref GR01/2021 — Congleton Bowling Club

8. New Grant Activities Monitoring Forms

None received.

9. Letter of Thanks (Enclosed)

To receive a letter of thanks from Astbury Mere Trust.

10. Management Accounts (Enclosed)

To receive and consider the Management Accounts to 315 May 2020.

11. Bank Reconciliation (Enclosed)

1

To receive and consider the bank reconciliation as at 315 May 2020.

12. Savings Account Balances (Enclosed)

To receive and consider the Savings Account balances as at 31 May 2020.

13. List of Payments (Enclosed)

To receive and consider the Payments lists between 1! — 31st May 2020.

14. Review and Amendments to the Financial Regulations (Enclosed)

(i) To review and approve updates to the Financial Regulations to be
recommended to Council to update the Constitution.

(i) To approve paying certain items by direct debit and purchase payments by
BACs in accordance with 6.6 and 6.7 of the Financial Regulations.



15. Fixed Asset Register and Inventory (Enclosed)

To receive the Asset Register and Inventory for the year ending 31! March 2020.

16. Annual Governance and Accountability Return (AGAR) and Unaudited Financial
Statements. (Enclosed)

To receive and approve the AGAR and Unaudited Financial statements prior to
recommendation for approval by Council on 23 July 2020 and submission to PKF
Littlejohn, the external accountant.

17. Flag Flying Policy (Enclosed)

To receive and approve a flag flying policy for Congleton Town Council.

To: Members of the Finance & Policy Committee
Clirs: Robert Douglas (Chair) Russell Chadwick (Vice Chair)

Duncan Amies, David Brown, Paul Duffy, George Hayes, Rob Moreton, Jean Parry,
Mark Rogan, James Smith

Ex-Officio: CliIr Sally Ann Holland (Town Mayor), Clir Denis Murphy (Deputy Mayor)

Ccs: Other members of the Council and Honorary Burgesses (3) for Information; Press (2)
Congleton Library, Congleton Tourist Information Centre.



CONGLETON TOWN COUNCIL

Minutes of the Finance and Policy Committee Meeting

held on Thursday 19" March 2020

PRESENT Committee members,

Ex-Officio Members

Non Committee members

1. Apologies

Apologies for absence were received from Committee members Clirs Duncan Amies, Russell
Chadwick, George Hayes and Rob Moreton and Non-Committee member Clir Amanda Martin.

2. Minutes

FAP/60/1920 RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Meeting of the Committee held on

David Brown

Robert Douglas (Chair)
Paul Duffy

Jean Parry

Mark Rogan

James Smith

Sally Ann Holland (Town Mayor)
Denis Murphy (Deputy Town Mayor)

Suzy Firkin
Margaret Gartside
Robert Hemsley
Kay Wesley

13" February 2020 be approved and signed by the Chair.

3. Declarations of Interest

Members are requested to declare both “pecuniary” and “non-pecuniary” interests as early

in the meeting as they become known.

Clirs David Brown, Sally Ann Holland and Denis Murphy declared a non-pecuniary interest in

matters relating to Cheshire East Council.

Clirs Brown and Holland declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 7 GR30/1920 SOL Theatre
School grant application.

4. Qutstanding Actions

None.



5. Questions from Members of the Public

To receive any questions from Members of the Public including those received in writing
7 days prior to the meeting

There were no questions from members of the public.

8. Grant Approvals and Commitments 2019/20

To receive a statement showing the current position to 29" February 2020.
FAP/61/1920 RESOLVED that the grant statement be received.

7. New Applications for Financial Assistance

FAP/62/1920 RESOLVED that the following grants be approved:

e Grant ref GR27/1920 — Inner trust TIC (Re-submission from 13" Feb 2020)
o £1,000 for Sessions at Bromley Farm
e Grant ref GR28/1920 — Ruby’s Fund
o £500 towards the 2020 Teddy Bear’s picnic
e Grant ref GR29/1920 — Home-Start Cheshire
o £224 towards Paediatric First Aid courses
e Grant ref GR30/1920 — SOL Theatre School
o £600 towards the summer 2020 production — to be used to fund 2
free places

8. New Grant Activities Monitoring Forms

e Bromley Farm Community Development Trust — Original Grant Ref GR79/1819
FAP/63/1920 RESOLVED to receive the Grant Activities Monitoring Form.

9. Letter of Thanks

FAP/64/1920 RESOLVED to receive a letter of thanks from Congleton Pentecostal Church.

10. Management Accounts

FAP/65/1920 RESOLVED to receive the management accounts as at 29" February 2020.

11. Bank Reconciliation

FAP/66/1920 RESOLVED to receive bank reconciliation as at 29" February 2020.

12. Savings Account Balances

FAP/67/1920 RESOLVED to receive the Savings Account balances as at
29" February 2020.

13. List of Payments

FAP/68/1920 RESOLVED to approve the List of Payments between 15! February and 29"
February 2020.



14. Training and Development Policy

FAP/69/1920 RESOLVED to approve subject to 3 small changes the Training and
Development Policy for inclusion into the Constitution.

15. Review of Town Hall Hire Charges

FAP/70/1920 RESOLVED to approve the Chief Officer's report recommending that the Town
Hall hire charges remain the same for the financial year 2020/2, but to be reviewed by the
Town Hall Assets and Services committee during the financial year 2020/21.

Clir Robert Douglas
Chair
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Part 1: Applicant(s) and Project Details

(?%Sg‘ il Congleton Town Council
r( L el & Application for Financial Assistance

Application Reference Number {office use only)

GRO01/2021
1.1 Applicant(s):
NN =P (3
1,2 | Representing: C o6 LETHR ?R&)\}\ <
B AR & 0Py
1.3 Email Address:
S\
1.4 Tel No.
1.5 Project Title: \kﬁ)‘ik} ﬂj\ Eﬁ\\\’ \@T\“\M&\‘V«\ _
1.6 Profect Objectives: T‘J E\RC-O QQ—» %\QTF; \\'\’{i\i" \E\;} 25 P\\‘\L\
AETTORS Btk o U R
CARO% FROWWTERS
1.7 Brief Project Description: L ‘ ) .
o RE-RE iR BRAG ok "V o
T o mWTULVER ARRD BN 0F ChuliousE,
| \eRATTo N CReRAED 00{, Bnb
OF CRRRSI 2iaA
1.8 Details accounts/budgets

RO EETT PGk BEPRox oo -
E SNV

Part 2: Cost Details / Resources / Timescale

2.1

Total Cost of Profect:

F oo | SEENKUHORED QUITR

2.2

Total contribution sought:

;‘in?\n O

2.3

What will the money be
spent on?

SEE D\bon® L V)
VsTECT DRECEATT e ™




2.4 | Any ongoing costs:
ol
2.5 | Details of confirmed match )
funding include source
cosh AT remelAR
In kind: LG THRER-BE TR AT A o B

CEET 0 IR oTuRERLs -

2.6 Resources needed:

2:7 Estimated  timescale  of

project from start to finish: \ \AE_E,K

Part 3: Potential Benefits / Outputs

B & i - i —_— —
3.1 What are the potential ‘H»\—:O A_ti FAC UG \M-GC;K\—. %.Kf‘)\‘\m_\‘g

benefits/outputs to residents ) . ek o
of Congleton By SN0 NSNS o \\_\ﬁ::- H\}‘\i&\‘*\
T VEE 0U R TRATTIES Yo b

REChRER TN Nerbe s

3.2 Are there similar services/
projects provided in the area &
O

Part 4: Evaluation/Publicity

41 |How will the project be| o 4 o\ (b M ERRFERS DD ComnTREE

evaluated and who will carry

out the evaluation?
2

42| Descrbe how you wil| TR GOGITTHEL OVEPARL Bt issiinige
; B S T GBI TR AT A CoUnE .

your project , R - ;
OFFLC B 0+ Co R ETom oF\ e ®

Date:\ \ (2" A P~0

NOTE: Personal details given on this form will be redacted for public purposes, but the office will keep a
copy within its electronic and paper files for the purposes of processing the grant. If successful the
information will be kept for six years in line with HMRC rules. Your details will not be used or shared for
other purposes in line with Congleton Town Council’s Privacy Policy and GDPR 2018.



FILE NOTES

DATE

COMMENTS Eed0e QG iT Rvmrits Catolds -

pmce, g [ Qe‘»\»«:bu& OLD Deranep Firont ponke

@ewcue, QBE I Baes (c dresARE @ ER SO ) |

Conel? @QIG’-“;( éLC;Ck; POVTH  WETAL AT

Angie Bepp todw T cer Kerdy T Lenver.

Flesr coe Deroimer bomct ae Wawe Greofed

(EAE. 2~ - @avs To CLRe

§ €. ) Corre 2 ersDeld

APP=1 LieeT Tewmwe CaoistH:

£7CJC‘ LAGEOIL D PteATE (2 WACS




Astbury Mere Trust

Astbury Mere Country Park Sandy
Lane

Congleton Cheshire

CW12 4FP

Tel: Office 01260 280720

admini@astburvimerstrust.pius.com

ASTBURY MERE TRUST

Congleton Town Council
Town Hall

High Street

Congleton

CWI12 1BN

25% March 2020

Dear Sirs,

On behalf of Astbury Mere Trust, I would like to thank Congleton Town Council for the recent award
of a grant of £1,500 towards phase three of the refurbishment of the activity centre at Astbury Mere
Country Park. Work is now progressing and I hope that councillors will be able to visit the park in the
near future to see the centre once the work is completed.

Yours faithfully

7, |

p=

Lorraine Mort
Treasurer

Astbury Mere Trust is a Company Limited by Guarantee and a Registered Charity No. 1007740




CONGLETON TOWN COUNCIL

COMMITTEE REPORTS AND UPDATES

COMMITTEE: Finance and Policy Committee

MEETING DATE | 02/07/2020 7pm LOCATION Via Zoom

AND TIME

REPORT FROM | Jackie Potts — Support Manager

AGENDA ITEM |10

REPORT TITLE | Management accounts for May 2020

Background
Variance analysis of the Management Accounts for May 2020 to accompany the
spreadsheet.

Updates These figures are to 315t May 2020.See spreadsheet for committee totals. The

figures for month 2 show figures largely in line with the budget. 17% of expenditure
would be expected to have been used if expenditure was a regular monthly amount.
Covid -19 is not expected to have a major impact on CTC's budget figures. The
Town Hall is unlikely to meet the budgeted amount of income for this financial year
but for the Council’s budget in total this will largely be offset by the Paddling Pool
being closed and the delay in taking on extra staff that had been budgeted for. The
Covid-19 EMR that was put aside from 19/20’s underspend will be used for any
items purchased specifically because of the current crisis.

Finance and Policy Committee

Corporate Management

Overall on budget

e Reception — TIC is paid in full in October (the Tourist Info Centre act as our
reception but are Cheshire East staff. Congleton Town Council pays
towards the salaries to enable the Centre to stay open during the afternoon
in winter.)

e Subscriptions and Publications come in at the beginning of the financial
year so 65% of the budget has been used.

e The annual building and contents insurance has been paid.

e Auditing invoices still to be received.

Democratic/Civic

Slightly under budget
e The Mayor’s annual allowance has not yet been paid.
e The first of four newsletters has been produced
e Hall and Room hire is an internal recharge against the Town Hall income but
as council meetings are currently being conducted via Zoom there has been
no charge for April and May.
e As the Annual Council meeting and Civic service have not taken place
nothing has been charged against the Civic budget to date.
Grants

£24,550 was available for grants for the year in May.




Community and Environment Committee

Under budget — 4% of the annual budget has been spent to 31/05/20.
o Very little spend on the Paddling Pool - as it is closed there are just a few
fixed costs.
o Very little spend to 31/05/20 on Floral Displays although there will be
hanging baskets to be paid for next month.
e No expenditure to date on Tourism, Youth and the Luncheon Club.

Town Hall, Assets and Services Committee

Streetscape
Income — on budget; Expenditure slightly under budget so 12% of the budget used

to date.

Town Hall

Expenditure slightly under budget and but income affected by no events in the Town
(just essential Blood doning) so overall 25% of budget used.

Capital

Capital is shown to enable the management accounts to balance to the budget
figure. The £25k actual expenditure to date is for transfers to reserves. Any capital
purchases are reflected in the reserves but there have been none for April and May.

Personnel Committee

Staffing costs slightly under budget

Decision
Requested

To receive the Management Accounts for May 2020




Congleton Town Council - Management Accounts - May 2020

Finance and Policy Committee

Corp Management
Staff Costs (re-allocated)
Travel
Training / Conferences
Rent Payable
Reception - TIC
Miscellaneous Office Costs
Telephone/Fax/Internet
Postage
Stationery & Printing
Subscriptions & Publications
Insurance
Computer/IT Costs
Photocopy Charges
Recruitment Advertising
Other Advertising
Bank Charges
Audit Fees - External
Audit Fees - Internal
Accountancy Support
Leqal & Professional fees
HR & H&S support
Central Overheads reallocated

Corporate Management:-Expenditure

Interest Receivable
Corporate Management :- Income

Net Expenditure over Income

Civic

Staff Costs (re-allocated)

Training / Conferences

Stationery & Printing

Marketing/Promotions

Council Newsletter

Council Website

Mayor's Allowance

Members Expenses

Civic Expenses

Civic Regalia

Hall & Room Hire

Civic Artefacts and Treasures

Central Overheads reallocated

Civic:-Expenditure

Grants  Grants

F&P Income - Expenditure Totals

Community and Environment Committee

Paddling Pool
Propogation Unit

Floral Displays
Allotments

Public Toilets

Congleton Partnership
Community Development
Crime Reduction/CCTV
Christmas Fayre/lights
Neighbourhood Plan
Covid 19

Donations and transfer from Covid 19 EMR
Tourism

Youth and Young People
Luncheon Club

Actual Year Current Variance
ToDate Annual Budget  Annual Total
22,755 141,048 118,293
0 900 900

35 3,000 2,965
2,325 13,950 11,625
0 3,450 3,450

38 1,660 1.622

65 1,020 955

196 2,900 2.704

0 3,000 3.000
2,277 3,500 1,223
6,099 9,180 3,081
1.830 11,600 9,770
79 2,600 2,521

0 500 500

0 300 300

146 1,000 854

0 2,000 2,000

0 1,290 1,290

0 4,570 4,570

35 5,000 4,965

879 4,590 3,711
-11,534 -63.095 -51,561
25,225 153,963 128,738
-409 -3,000 -2,591.00
0.00

-409 -3,000 -2,591
24,816 150,963 126,147
4,470 27,664 23,194
190 2,000 1,810

0 500 500

124 1,000 876
1,375 5,388 4,013
0 1,500 1,500

0 3,000 3,000

0 200 200

0 5,000 5,000

0 250 250

0 6,000 6,000

0 500 500

463 2,534 2,071
6,622 55,536 48,914
37,033 61,683 24,550
68,471 268,082 199,611
331 27,005 26,674

0 1,000 1,000

99 12,250 12,151
115 1,250 1,135
1,287 16,050 14,763
5,871 35,227 29,356
13,464 140,553 127,089
0 53,650 53,650

48 16,000 15,952

0 0 0
6,321 0 -6,321
-13,291 0 13,291
0 5,000 5,000

0 2,000 2,000

0 9,000 9,000

% of
Budget

0%
0%

0%
18%

12%

60%

26%

1%

17%
10%

0%
#DIV/0!
#DIV/0!
#DIV/O!

0%

0%

0%



Community and Environment - Expenditure Totals 14,245 318,985 304,740 4%




Town Hall, Assets and Services Committee Actual Year Current Variance % of
ToDate Annual Budget  Annual Total — Budget

Streetscape

Streetscape Expenditure 86,277 596,969 510,692 14%
Streetscape - Income CEC -61,117 -366,702 -305,585 17%
Streetscape - External work income -90 -15,000 -14,910 1%
Streetscape - Other -209 0 209  #DIV/0!
Streetscape - Misc Income -150 -900 -750 17%
-61,566 -382,602 -321,036 16%
Net Expenditure over Income 24,711 214,367 189,656 12%
Town Hall
Town Hall - Expenditure 25,604 201,770 176,166 13%
Town Hall - Income -6,906 -126,300 -119,394 5%
Net Expenditure over Income 18,698 75,470 56,772 25%
Town Hall, Assets and Services - Net Expenditure 43,409 289,837 246,428 15%
Capital 25,000 46,770 21,770 53%
Total Net Expenditure 151,125 923,674 772,549 16%
Personnel
Staff Costs 118,853 829,960 711,107 14%
Reserves as at 31/05/20
General Reserve 218,561
Capital Equipment Fund 39,344
Capital Contingency Fund 320,250
EMR Elections 20,000
EMR Crime Prevention/Traffic calming 7,357
EMR Covid 19 Fund 40,000
EMR Ancient Treasures 3,000
EMR Website 5,151
EMR Training 8,479
EMR Toilets 24,012
EMR Public Realm 9,189
EMR Legal Fees 5,292
EMR Christmas Lights 7,990
EMR Tourism 9,169
EMR Marketing 5,000
EMR Congleton Neighbourhood Plan 12,033
EMR Cenotaph 100,000
EMR Rotary Bonfire 5,000
EMR Civic 1,000

840,827



Date: 23/06/2020

Congleton Town Council

Page 1

Time:09:48 Bank Reconciliation Statement as at 31/05/2020 User: JP
for Cashbook 1 - RBS Current/l Access Acct
Bank Statement Account Name (s) Statement Date Page No Balances
RBS Current Account 11411170 31/05/2020 646 117,536.10
117,536.10
Unpresented Cheques (Minus) Amount
24/01/2020 008942 Halo Hair 10.00
10.00
117,526.10
Receipts not Banked/Cleared (Plus)
0.00
0.00
117,526.10
Balance per Cash Book is :- 117,526.10
Difference is :- 0.00



Congleton Town Council - Savings account balances

Balances as at 31st May 2020

Balance per Business Reserve Account (10180876) 876,042.50
Cambridge and Counties 1 year fixed deposit 150,000.00
CCLA deposit 150,000.00

1,176,042.50




Date Paid

01/05/2020
01/05/2020
01/05/2020
01/05/2020
11/05/2020
13/05/2020
15/05/2020
15/05/2020
18/05/2020
21/05/2020
21/05/2020
22/05/2020
26/05/2020
26/05/2020
28/05/2020
28/05/2020
29/05/2020
29/05/2020

Congleton Town Council
RBS Current/l Access Acct

List of Payments made between 01/05/2020 and 31/05/2020

Payee Name

BACS P/L Pymnt Page 2399
Prism Solutions

Cheshire East Councll

Cheshire East Councll

BACS P/L Pymnt Page 2403
Information Commissioners Off
BACS P/L Pymnt Page 2407

rbs bankline

RBS Autopay

RBS

West Mercla Energy

BACS P/L Pymnt Page 2408
Prism Solutions

EE Ltd

RBS Credit Card

Allpay - Plus Dane

BACS P/L Pymnt Page 2411
Suez Recycling and Recovery UK

Reference

BACS Pymnt
[3]]

[3]8]

(3]8]

BACS Pymnt
Do

BACS Pymnt
BLN
PAYROLL
oD

pD

BACS Pymnt
DD

DD

DD

bD

BACS Pymnt
Do

Amount Paid  Transaction Detall

£7,015.83 BACS P/L Pymnt Page 2399
£252,02 Telephone and call charges
£2,739.00 TH business rates
£216.00 Mkt st toilet rates
£17,572.18 BACS P/L Pymnt Page 2403
£35.00 Data Protection annual fee
£1,301.30 BACS P/L Pymnt Page 2407
£66.70 Bankline chgs
£59,720.42 Payroll May 2020
£7.95 RBS bank charges
£2,519.60 1684763/11604/T Hall Gas, Electricity
£16,030,55 BACS P/L Pymnt Page 2408
£1,008.22 121779/11660/IT Support
£65,10 01285557064/11642/cali charges
£701,62 May CC food hub aldi
£36.28 Allotment gargage rental
£4,725,04 BACS P/L Pymnt Page 2411
£310.76 31875968/11619/waste Recycl

£114,413.57



28/04/2020

16:20

Congleton Town Council Page 2399

List of Purchase Ledger Payments

User: ST

Linked to Cashbook 1

Entered Month 2

by user ST
Supplier and Invoice Details Invoice Date Invoice No Ledger AmountDue  Discount Amount Paid Balance
ANSA Ansa Environmental Services
531023765/11584/HR services 21104/2020 531023765 1 2,078.71 0.00 2,078.71 0.00

Authorised: |p

0.00 2,078.71

Above paid on 01/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref ANSA

CHRONICLLE  Heads Congleton Limited

Authorlsed: mjw

0.00 525.00

Above paid on 01/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref DCASSIST

117867/11585/wedding feature 13/02/2020 117867 1 182.40 0.00 182.40 0.00
Authorised: Jm
118160/11586/1940's special 06/03/2020 118160 1 180.00 0.00 180.00 0.00
¢ Authorised: Jm
118307/11587/991/1920/Brides a 26/03/2020 118307 1 124.80 0.00 124.80 0.00
Authorised: jm
118390/11588/COVID spread 02/04/2020 118390 1 960.00 0.00 960.00 0.00
Authorised: jm
118475/11590/26/2021/shop loca 16/04/2020 118475 1 120,00 0.00 120.00 0.00
Aulhorised: jm
118477/11589/COVID advert 16/04/2020 118477 1 480.00 0.00 480.00 0.00
Authorised: fm
118521/11591/shop local 23/0412020 118621 1 60.00 0.00 60.00 0,00
Authorised: jm
0.00 2,107.20
Above paid on 01/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref CHRONIGLE
DCASSIST D C Assist Ltd
; DCATHO042/11592/ollet cleaning 10/04/2020 DCATHO042 1 162.50 0.00 162.50 0,00
Authorised: mjw
DCATHO043/11593/oilet cleaning 17/04/2020 DCATHO043 1 162.50 0.00 162.50 0.00
Authorlsed: mjw
DCATH43/11594/toilet cleaning 24/04/2020 DGCATH43 1 200.00 0.00 200.00 0.00

Continued over page
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16:20 List of Purchase Ledger Payments

Page 2400

User. ST

Linked to Cashbook 1

Entered Month 2

by user ST
Supplier and Invoice Details Invoice Date Invoice No Ledger AmountDue Discount Amount Paid Bafance
GARTEC Gartec Limited
5010497/11595/museum it 23/04/2020 S010497 1 441.60 0.00 441,60 0.00
Authorised: mjw
S101498/11596/T Hall ifft 23/04/2020 S101498 1 441.60 0.00 441.60 0.00

Authorised: mjw

0.00 683.20

Above paid on 01/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref GARTEC

OoTis Otis Ltd

01384618/11597/T Hall lift 01/04/2020 01384618 1 541,72
* Authorised: mjw

0.00 541,72 0.00

0.00 541.72

Above pald on 01/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref OTIS

VIBRANT Vibrant Graphics Ltd

029661/11699/8 Necessities 23/04/2020 029661 1 880.00
Authorised: jm

.00 880.00 0.00

0,00 880.00

Above pald on 01/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref VIBRANT

Total Purchase Ledger Payments

0.00 7,016.83
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16:00 List of Purchase Ledger Payments

Congleton Town Council

Page 2403

User; ST

Linked to Cashbook 1

Entered Month 1

by user ST
Supplier and Invoice Details Invoice Date Invoice No Ledger AmountDue  Discounl Amounl Paid Balance
CATMEDIA Gat Social Media
0670/11611/P/ship website 30/04/2020 0670 1 210.00 0.00 210.00 0.00
Authorised: MS

0.00 210,00
Above paid on 11/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref CATMEDIA

CCP Congleton Community Prejects
300420/11614/Annual Grant 30/04/2020 300420 1 16,000.00 0.00  16,000.00 0.00

Authorised: jp

0.00  16,000.00

Above pald on 11/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref GCP

CHESHELECT Gheshire Electrical Supplies Ltd

596-062895/11612/Might bulbs 17/04/2020 596-062895 1 33.26 0,00 33.26 0.00
Authorlsed: mjw

0,00 33.26

Above pald on 11/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref CHESHELECT

CHS Congleton High School
DI100100616/11615/printing 09/04/2020 DI1100100516 1 194,20 0.00 194.20 0.00
Authorised: mh

0.00 194,20

Above pald on 11/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref CHS

., GHUBB Chubb Fire & Securlty Ltd

8097713/11613/securlty fobs 12/03/2020 8097713 1 66.00 0.00 66.00 0.00
Authorised: mjw

0.00 66.00

Above paid on 11/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref CHUBB

KGLOACH K G Loach
43713/11617/compost HAAA 30/04/2020 43713 1 184.80 0.00 184.80 0.00
Authorised: rb

0.00 184.80

Above pald on 11/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref KGLOACH

Continued over page
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15:00 List of Purchase Ledger Payments

Page 2404

User: ST

Linked to Cashbook 1

Entered Month 1

by user ST
Supplier and Invoice Delails Invoice Date Invoice No Ledger AmountDue  Discount Amount Paid Balance
LEAFLET The Leaflet Team
TKD1218/11618/Dist Bear Necess 02/03/2020 TKD1218 1 495.00 0.00 495.00 0.00
Authorised: jm
0.00 495.00

Above paid on 11/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref LEAFLET

WATERPLUS1 Water Plus Ltd

Above pald on 11/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref ZURICH

Total Purchase Ledger Payments 0.00 17,572.18

06306817/11621/credil 10/04/2020 00966311 1 -32.17 0,00 -20.19 -11.98
Authortsed: jp
. 06486919/11620/HAAA 10/04/2020 05486919 1 20.19 0.00 20.19 0.00
* Authorised: jp
0.00 0.00
No payment due as Credit Noles have been applied
WHITEHURST Whitehursts Agricultural & Builders
13099/11623/rubber coupler 29/04/2020 13089 1 24.48 0.00 24.48 0.00
Authorlsed: b
13116/11622/hench brackets 29/04/2020 13116 1 11.64 0.00 11.64 0.00
Authorised: rb
0.00 3612
Abaove paid on 11/06/2020 by Online Payment Ref WHITEHURST
ZURICH Zurich Insurance Gompany
300320/11626/P/ship Insurance 30/03/2020 300320 1 352.80 0.00 352.80 0.00
Authosised: ms ‘
0.00 352,80
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1600 List of Purchase Ledger Payments User: ST

Linked to Cashbook 1 Entered Month 2

by uset ST
Supplier and Invoice Details Invoice Date Invoice No Ledger Amount Due  Discount Amaunt Paid Balance
CHAINS Chains & Lifting Tackle (Midlands) Ltd
105742/11627/exam fall restra 22/04/2020 105742 1 180.00 0.00 180.00 0.00
Authorised: jju
0.00 180.00

Above paid on 15/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref CHAINS

DCASSIST D C Assist Ltd

DCATHO44/11628/tollets 30/04/2020 DCATHO044 1 200.00 0.00 200.00 0.00
Authorised: |
0.00 200.00

Above paid on 16/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref DCASSIST
WATER Water Plus Ltd
05471908/11629/vater charges 03/04/2020 05471908 1 464.65 0.00 464,65 0.00
Authorised: j,
05566695/11630/watar charges 30/04/2020 05566695 1 456,65 0.00 456.65 0.00
Authorised: i

0.00 921,30

Above pald on 15/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref WATER

Total Purchase Ledger Payments 0.00 1,301.30
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16:06 List of Purchase Ledger Payments

Congleton Town Coungil Page 2408
User: ST

Linked to Cashbook 1

Entered Month 2

by user ST
Supplier and Invoice Details Invoice Dale Invoice No Ledger AmountDue  Discount Amount Paid Balance
AKERS Mrs S Akers Smith
010420/11631/raining webinar 01/05/2020 010420 1 228.00 0.00 228.00 0.00

Authorised: dm

0,00 228.00

Above paid on 22/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref AKERS

ALPHATYRES Alpha and Street Legal Tyres Ltd

12687/11632/yre repair 22104/2020
Authorlsed: tb

. 12850/11633/call out/new lyre 18/05/2020
+ Authorised: b

12687 1 24.00 0.00 24,00 0.00
12850 1 192.00 0.00 192.00 0.00
0.00 216.00

Above paid on 22/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref ALPHATYRES

ANSA Ansa Environmental Services
531022805/11634/Hanging Basket 01/06/2020
Authorised: rb

531023869/11635/HR/H & S 056/05/2020

Authorised: jp

531022805 1 7,974.01 0,00 7,974.0% . 0.00

531023869 1 1,054.96 0.00 1,064.96 0.00

0.00 9,028.97

Above paid on 22/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref ANSA

AUDITING Auditing Solutions Ltd

A6456/11636/Audlting Solutions 09/05/2020
Authorised: jp

AB456 1 §534.00 0.00 534.00 0.00

0.00 534.00

Above paid on 22/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref AUDITING

cITY City Plumbing Suppfies Holdings Ltd

1168ABW758/11638/oilet seals 21/04/2020
Authorised: mjw

1168ABW758 1 44,04 0.00 44.04 0.00

0.00 44.04

Above pald on 22/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref CITY

Continued over page
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Congleton Town Council

16:06 List of Purchase Ledger Payments

Page 2409

User: ST

Linked to Cashbook 1

Entered Month 2

Above pald on 22/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref KGLOACH

by user ST
Supplier and Invoice Detalls Invoice Dale Invoice No Ledger AmountDue  Discount Amount Paid Balance
GCONGGARDEN Congleton Garden Machinery Ltd
33579/11639%mower spares 13/05/2020 33579 1 79.29 0.00 79.29 0.00
Authorised: rb
0.00 79.29
Above pald on 22/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref CONGGARDEN
cvs CVS Cheshlre East
2561/11640/membership renewal 01/06/2020 2561 1 45.00 0.00 45.00 0.00
Authorised: ms
0.00 45.00
Above pald on 22/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref CVS
CWLTRUST The Cheshire Wildlife Trust Ltd
2090/11637/fruit trees etc 3110372020 2090 1 727.24 0.00 727.24 0.00
Authorised: ms
0,00 727.24
Above paid on 22/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref CWLTRUST
DCASSIST D C Assist Ltd
DCATHO045/11641/oilet cleaning 08/05/2020 DCATHO45 1 162.50 0.00 162.50 0.00
Authorised: mjw
0.00 162.50
Above paid on 22/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref DCASSIST
. FOUR Four Oaks Nurserles Ltd
 59960/1 1643/Hanging Basiet bit 13/05/2020 59960 1 203.64 0.00 203.864 0.00
Authorlsed: b
0.00 203,64
Above paid on 22/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref FOUR
KGLOACH K G Loach
43937/11644/fertilier/sand 12/05/2020 43937 1 377.04 0.00 377.04 0.00
Authorised: b
0.00 377.04

Continued over page
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16:06 List of Purchase Ledger Payments User: ST

Linked to Cashbook 1 Entered Month 2
by user 8T

Suppller and Invoice Details Invoice Date Invoice No Ledger AmountDue  Discount Amount Pald Balance

PORTERS Porters Service Statlon Ltd

2020370/11646/uel 30/04/2020 2020370 1 840.30 0.00 840.30 0.00

Authorised: rb

0.00 840.30

Above pald an 22/06/2020 by Online Payment Ref PORTERS

TALKECHEM Talke Chemical Gompany Limited

66189/11647/paint, brushes etc 29/04/2020 66189 1 74.72 0.00 74.72 0,00
Authorised: mjw

0.00 74.72

Above paid on 22/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref TALKECHEM

WATERPLUS1 Water Plus Ltd

05306817/11648/HAAA water 16/02/2020 05306817 1 3217 0.00 3217 0.00
Authorised: jp
05306817/11621/credit 10/04/2020 00956311 1 -11.98 0.00 -11.98 0.00
Authorised: |p
05581038/11649/HAAA 16/05/2020 065681038 1 21.77 0.00 21,77 0.00

Authorised: jp

0.00 41.96

Above paid on 22/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref WATERPLUS1

WESTWALLAS West Wallasey Contract Hire

CH41221/11650/lease vans 13/05/2020 CH41221 1 3,427.85 0.00 3,427.85 0.00
_ Authorised: b

0.00 3,427.85

Above pald on 22/05/2020 by Online Paymenl Ref WESTWALLAS

Total Purchase Ledger Payments 0.00 16,030.56
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15:30 List of Purchase Ledger Payments
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User: ST

Linked to Cashbook 1

Entered Month 2

by user 8T
Supplier and Invoice Details Involce Date Invoice No Ledger AmountDue  Discount Amount Paid Balance
CALC Cheshire Association of Local Councils
202021/11651/affiliation fee 15/05/2020 202021 1 1,470.04 0.00 1,470.04 0.00
Authorised: dm
0.00 1,470.04
Above paid an 29/06/2020 by Online Payment Ref CALG
DCASSIST D C Assist Ltd
DCATHO46/11652/cleaning loilet 15/05/2020 DCATHO46 1 137.50 0.00 137.60 0.00
Authorised: mjw
DCATHO47/11653/cleaning toilet 22/06/2020 DCATHO047 1 162.50 0.00 162.50 0.00
“uthorised: mjw
0.00 300.00
Above paid on 28/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref DCASSIST
KGLOACH K G Loach
44152/11657/HAAA compost 20/05/2020 44152 1 115.20 0.00 115.20 0.00
Authorised:
44156/11656/brush, shovel scra 20/05/2020 44156 1 48.84 0.00 48.84 0.00
Authotised: b
0.00 164.04
Above paid on 29/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref KGLOACH
LAC LAC Autoparts
MB601297/11664/Adblue 13/05/2020 MB601297 1 84.60 0.00 84.60 0.00
Authorised: tb
0.00 84,60
Above paid on 29/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref LAG
LESHALMAN  Les Halman Nurserles Ltd
54931/11655/summer bedding 21/05/2020 54931 1 756.00 0.00 756.00 0.00

Authorised: rb

0.00 766.00

Above pald on 20/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref LESHALMAN

Continued over page
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16:30 List of Purchase Ledger Payments User: ST

Linked to Cashbhook 1 Entered Month 2
by user ST

Supplier and Invoice Detalls Involce Date Invoice No Ledger AmountDue  Discount Amount Paid Balance

MOCRE R.J.& J. Moore

200520/11658/S Firkin flowers 20/05/2620 200520 1 30.00 0.00 30.00 0.00

Authorised: dm
0.00 . 30.00

Above paid on 29/06/2020 by Online Payment Ref MOORE

PRISMPARFU  Prism Parfums Ltd

567/11659/hand sanilisers 20/05/2020 567 1 937.50 0.00 937.50 0.00
Authorised: dm

0.00 937.50

Above paid on 29/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref PRISMPARFU

SLCC Soclety of Local Council Clerks

131718/11661/wehinar 19/05/2020 131718 1 42.00 0.00 42,00 0.00
Authorised: Im

0.00 42.00

Above paid on 29/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref SLCC

THOMSON Thomson Planning Partnership Ltd

54/012/AT/106/11662/Consultant 24/05/2020 54/012/AT/M06 1 561,60 0.00 561.60 0.00
Authorised: dm

0.00 561.60

Above paid on 29/06/2020 by Online Payment Ref THOMSON

ATERLOGIC Waterlogic GB Ltd

5585 174/11663/cooler rental 30/04/2020 5585174 1 39.84 0.00 39.84 0.00
Authorised: mjw

0.00 39.84

Abave paid on 29/05/2020 by Online Payment Ref WATERLOGICG

WATERPLUS2 Water Plus Ltd

05581171/11664/paddling poof 12/06/2020 05581171 1 339.42 0.00 339.42 0.00
Authorised: jp

0.00 339.42

Above pald on 29/05/2020 by Ontine Payment Ref WATERPLUS2

Total Purchase Ledger Payments 0.00 4,725.04




CONGLETON TOWN COUNCIL

COMMITTEE REPORTS AND UPDATES

COMMITTEE: Finance & Policy Committee

MEETING DATE 2" July 2020 LOCATION Via Zoom

AND TIME 7.00pm

REPORT FROM Jackie Potts
Support Manager and Responsible Financial Officer

AGENDA ITEM 14

REPORT TITLE Review and amendments to the Financial Regulations

Background The Town Council’s Financial Regulations are one of the three mandatory
documents required by law for a Town Council to operate. (The other two
being the Standing Orders and Code of Conduct). The Town Council is
required to review the Financial Regulations regularly. These were last
reviewed a year ago (13/06/19) so an annual review is good practice.

Updates These Financial Regulations have been reviewed by the Chief Officer, Responsible

Financial Officer in conjunction with the Chair and Vice Chair of the Finance and
Policy committee. The Town Council’s Financial regulations are based on the
model Financial regulations issued by NALC with some adjustments for local
custom and practice. The updates are shown in red on the enclosed copy of the
regulations.

Recommendation

To approve the updates to the Financial Regulations to recommend to Council on
23 July 2020 for inclusion in the Council’s constitution.




Wl N oy I & D b

[EE T
[ =]

13.
14,
15.
16.
17.

CONGLETON TOWN COUNCIL

FINANCIAL REGULATIONS
INDEX
GENERAL ..ttt ettt et beses e sresnesse e assas b a0t emm e m e e s s g en 0o e E LS ELT TR st 2
ACCOUNTING AND AUDIT (INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL) c.ccevcciiiiiiiiiniinninmssssesss e 45
ANNUAL ESTIMATES (BUDGET) AND FORWARD PLANNING.......c.cccvininieee .56
BUDGETARY CONTROL AND AUTHORITY TO SPEND .......cociviunan. 6+

BANKING ARRANGEMENTS AND AUTHORISATION OF PAYMENTS ...

INSTRUCTIONS FOR THE MAKING OF PAYMENTS.... NP e 89
PAYMENT OF SALARIES........ 1041
LOANS AND INVESTIMIENTS ... occtetiniiiiiiisiinsne ettt s s s sn s b 1112
INCOME.....coortiiriianannnn 1112

ORGERS FOR WORK, GOODS AND SERVICES issvsssssssinssiassiorsivasmissssnsisissiississesmesssninssssssssnssvs BB
TR TEIRET e cpsseoresmessaisi R e wsiss asmacrussensinsss SRR

PAYMENTS UNDER CONTRACTS FOR BUILDING OR OTHER CONSTRUCTION WORKS (PUBLIC
WORKS CONTRACTS ). eeevseeeeeemnsssssssssssssssssssassesssessssssssssssssssssss 1415

STORES AND EQUIPMENT ....octniiimmmnrnniiniens 1416
ASSETS, PROPERTIES AND ESTATES ........ ...1516

INSURANCE w.vvvvoorneeeeerveeeee OO, 1+ =
RISK MANAGEMENT....oooumsummsssesssssemsssssssssssses OO TROOR [x =-
SUSPENSION AND REVISION OF FINANCIAL REGULATIONS wcecveeverrvessesssuasssenssecsssssissssensss 1618



1.1

1.2,

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

17

1.8.
1.9.

GENERAL

These financial regulations govern the conduct of financial management by the council and
may only be amended or varied by resolution of the council. Financial regulations are one of
the council’s three governing policy documents providing procedural guidance for members
and officers_(the others being the Standing Orders and the Code of Conduct). Financial
regulations must be observed in conjunction with the council’s standing orders and any

individual financial regulations relating to contracts.

The council is responsible in law for ensuring that its financial management is adequate and
effective and that the council has a sound system of internal control which facilitates the
effective exercise of the council’s functions, including arrangements for the management of
risk.

The council’s accounting control systems must include measures:

. for the timely production of accounts.

° that provide for the safe and efficient safeguarding of public money.
° to prevent and detect inaccuracy and fraud; and

° identifying the duties of officers.

These financial regulations demonstrate how the council meets these responsibilities and
requirements.

At least once a year, prior to approving the Annual Governance Statement, the council must
review the effectiveness of its system of internal control which shall be in accordance with
proper practices.

Deliberate or wilful breach of these Regulations by an employee may give rise to disciplinary
proceedings.

Members of Council are expected to follow the instructions within these Regulations and not
to entice employees to breach them. Failure to follow instructions within these Regulations
brings the office of councillor into disrepute.

The Responsible Financial Officer (RFO) holds a statutory office to be appointed by the council.
The RFO:
° acts under the policy direction of the council.

° administers the council's financial affairs in accordance with all Acts, Regulations and
proper practices.

® determines on behalf of the council its accounting records and accounting control
systems.

° ensures the accounting control systems are observed;
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maintains the accounting records of the council up to date in accordance with proper
practices;

assists the council to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of its
resources; and

produces financial management information as required by the council.

1.10.  The accounting records determined by the RFO shall be sufficient to show and explain the
council’s transactions and to enable the RFO to ensure that any income and expenditure
account and statement of balances, and additional information, as the case may be, or
management information prepared for the council from time to time comply with the
Accounts and Audit Regulations.

1.11.  The accounting records determined by the RFO shall in particular contain:

entries from day to day of all sums of money received and expended by the council
and the matters to which the income and expenditure relate;

a record of the assets and liabilities of the council; and

wherever relevant, a record of the council’s income and expenditure in relation to
claims made, or to be made, for any contribution, grant or subsidy.

1.12.  The accounting control systems determined by the RFO shall include:

o

procedures to ensure that the financial transactions of the council are recorded as
soon as reasonably practicable and as accurately and reasonably as possible;

procedures to enable the prevention and detection of inaccuracies and fraud and the
ability to reconstruct any lost records;

identification of the duties of officers dealing with financial transactions and division
of responsibilities of those officers in relation to significant transactions;

procedures to ensure that uncollectable amounts, including any bad debts are not
submitted to the council for approval to be written off except with the approval of
the RFO and that the approvals are shown in the accounting records; and

measures to ensure that risk is properly managed.

1.13. The council is not empowered by these Regulations or otherwise to delegate certain
specified decisions. In particular any decision regarding:

setting the final budget or the precept (council tax requirement);
approving accounting statements;
approving an annual governance statement;

borrowing;
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1.45.

2.

2.1

2.2,

2.3.

2.4,

° writing off bad debts;

. declaring eligibility for the General Power of Competence; and

° addressing recommendations in any report from the internal or external auditors,
these shall be a matter for the full council only.

In addition the council must:

° determine and keep under regular review the bank mandate for all council bank
accounts;

° approve any grant or a single commitment in excess of £53,000; and

. in respect of the annual salary for any employee have regard to recommendations
about annual salaries of employees made by the relevant committee in accordance
with its terms of reference.

In these financial regulations, references to the Accounts and Audit Regulations or ‘the
regulations’ shall mean the regulations issued under the provisions of section 27 of the
Audit Commission Act 1998, or any superseding legislation, and then in force unless
otherwise specified.

In these financial regulations the term ‘proper practice’ or ‘proper practices’ shall refer to
guidance issued in Governance and Accountability for Local Councils - a Practitioners’
Guide (England) issued by the Joint Panel on Accounting Guidance (JPAG), available from
the websites of NALC and the Society for Local Council Chief Officers (SLCC).

ACCOUNTING AND AUDIT (INTERNAL AND EXTERNAL)

All accounting procedures and financial records of the council shall be determined by the RFO
in accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations, appropriate guidance and proper
practices.

On a regular basis, at least once in each quarter, and at each financial year end, a member
other than the Mayor-{Chair} shall be appointed to verify bank reconciliations (for all accounts)
produced by the RFO. The member shall sign the reconciliations and the original bank
statements (or similar document) as evidence of verification. This activity shall on conclusion
be reported, including any exceptions, to and noted by the Finance Committee.

The RFO shall complete the annual statement of accounts, annual report, and any related
documents of the council contained in the Annual Return (as specified in proper practices) as
soon as practicable after the end of the financial year and having certified the accounts shall
submit them and report thereon to the council within the timescales set by the Accounts and
Audit Regulations.

The council shall ensure that there is an adequate and effective system of internal audit of its
accounting records, and of its system of internal control in accordance with proper practices.
Any officer or member of the council shall make available such documents and records as
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appear to the council to be necessary for the purpose of the auditand shall, as directed by the
council, supply the RFO, internal auditor, or external auditor with such information and
explanation as the council considers necessary for that purpose.

2.5. The internal auditor shall be appointed by and shall carry out the work in relation to internal
controls required by the council in accordance with proper practices.

2.6. The internal auditor shall;
° be competent and independent of the financial operations of the council;

° report to council in writing, or in person, on a regular basis with a minimum of one
annual written report during each financial year;

° to demonstrate competence, objectivity and independence, be free from any actual or
perceived conflicts of interest, including those arising from family relationships; and

° have no involvement in the financial decision making, management or control of the
council.

2.7. Internal or external auditors may not under any circumstances:
° perform any operational duties for the council;
° initiate or approve accounting transactions; or

° direct the activities of any council employee, except to the extent that such employees
have been appropriately assigned to assist the internal auditor.

2.8. For the avoidance of doubt, in relation to internal audit the terms ‘independent’ and
‘independence’ shall have the same meaning as is described in proper practices.

2.9. The RFO shall make arrangements for the exercise of electors’ rights in relation to the accounts
including the opportunity to inspect the accounts, books, and vouchers and display or publish
any notices and statements of account required by the Local Audit and Accountability Act
2014, or any superseding legislation, and the Accounts and Audit Regulations.

2.10. The RFO shall, without undue delay, bring to the attention of all councillors any
correspondence or report from internal or external auditors.

3. ANNUAL ESTIMATES (BUDGET) AND FORWARD PLANNING

3.1 The RFO must each year, by no later than November, prepare detailed estimates of all income
and expenditure, including the use of reserves and all sources of funding for the following
financial year in the form of a budget to be considered by each committee and the council.

32 The council shall consider annual budget proposals in relation to the council’s three year
forecast of revenue and capital receipts and payments including recommendations for the use
of reserves and sources of funding and update the forecast accordingly.
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3.3.

3.4,

4.

4.1.

4.2,

4.3,

4.4,

4.5,

4.6.

4.7.

The Finance Committee shall recommend and the Council shall fix the precept (council tax
requirement), and relevant basic amount of council tax to be levied for the ensuing financial
year not later than by the end of January each year. The RFO shall issue the precept to the
billing authority and shall supply each member with a copy of the approved annual budget.

The approved annual budget shall form the basis of financial control for the ensuing year.

BUDGETARY CONTROL AND AUTHORITY TO SPEND

Expenditure on revenue items may be authorised up to the amounts included for that class of
expenditure in the approved budget. This authority is to be determined by:

. the council for all items over £10,000;

. a duly delegated committee of the council for items over £5,000; or

. the Chief Officer for any items below £5,000.

Contracts may not be disaggregated to avoid controls imposed by these regulations.

Expenditure in accordance with 4.1 above which results in a budget being exceeded by no
more than 10% may be authorised in arrears by the Finance Committee. No other expenditure
may be authorised that will exceed the amount provided in the revenue budget for that class
of expenditure other than by prior resolution of the council, or duly delegated committee.
During the budget year and with the approval of council having considered fully the
implications for public services, unspent and available amounts may be moved to other
budget headings or to an earmarked reserve as appropriate (‘virement’).

Unspent provisions in the revenue or capital budgets for completed projects shall not be
carried forward to a subsequent year.

The salary budgets are to be reviewed at least annually for the following financial year and
such review shall be evidenced by a hard copy schedule signed by the Chief Officer and the
Chair of Council or relevant committee. The RFO will inform committees of any changes
impacting on their budget requirement for the coming year in good time.

In cases of extreme risk to the delivery of council services, the Chief Officer may authorise
revenue expenditure on behalf of the council which in the Chief Officer’s judgement it is
necessary to carry out. Such expenditure includes repair, replacement or other work, whether
or not there is any budgetary provision for the expenditure, subject to a limit of £2,000. The
Chief Officer shall report such action to the Chair as soon as possible and to the council as
soon as practicable thereafter.

No expenditure shall be authorised in relation to any capital project and no contract entered
into or tender accepted involving capital expenditure unless the council is satisfied that the
necessary funds are available and the requisite borrowing approval has been obtained.

All capital works shall be administered in accordance with the council's standing orders and
financial regulations relating to contracts.
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4.8.

4.9.

5.1

5.2,

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

5.6.

The RFO shall regularly provide the council with a statement of income and expenditure to
date under each heading of the budgets, comparing actual expenditure to the appropriate
date against that planned as shown in the budget. These statements are to be prepared at
least at the end of each financial quarter and shall show explanations of material variances.

Changes in earmarked reserves shall be approved by council as part of the budgetary control
process.

BANKING ARRANGEMENTS AND AUTHORISATION OF PAYMENTS

The council's banking arrangements, including the bank mandate, shall be made by the RFO
and approved by the council; banking arrangements may not be delegated to a committee.
The Chief Officer and RFO to be signatories on the accounts for communication purposes only
and not to be used for payment. The banking arrangements shall be regularly reviewed for
safety and efficiency.

The RFO shall prepare a schedule of payments, forming part of the Agenda for the Meeting
and present the schedule to The Finance Committee. The committee shall review the schedule
for compliance and, having satisfied itself shall note the payments.

All invoices for payment shall be examined, verified and certified by the RFO to confirm that
the work, goods or services to which each invoice relates has been received, carried out,
examined and represents expenditure previously approved by the council.

The RFO shall examine invoices for arithmetical accuracy and analyse them to the appropriate
expenditure heading. The RFO shall take all steps to pay all invoices submitted within the
stated credit terms.

The Chief Officer and RFO shall have delegated authority to make payment of items only in
the following circumstances:

a)  If a payment is necessary to avoid a charge to interest under the Late Payment of
Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998, and the due date for payment is before the next
scheduled Meeting of council, where the Chief Officer and RFO certify that there is no
dispute or other reason to delay payment.

b)  An expenditure item authorised under 5.6 below (continuing contracts and obligations)
or

¢)  fund transfers within the councils banking arrangements.

In respect of grants a duly authorised committee shall approve expenditure within any limits
set by council and in accordance with any policy statement approved by council. Any Revenue
or Capital Grant in excess of £5,000 shall before payment, be subject to ratification by
resolution of the council.
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5.7.

5.8.

6.1,

6.2

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

6.10:6.7.If thought appropriate by the council, payment for certain items may be made by BACS or

Members are subject to the Code of Conduct that has been adopted by the council and shall
comply with the Code and Standing Orders when a decision to authorise or instruct payment
is made in respect of a matter in which they have a disclosable pecuniary or other interest,
unless a dispensation has been granted.

The council will aim to rotate the duties of members in these Regulations so that onerous
duties are shared out as evenly as possible over time.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR THE MAKING OF PAYMENTS
The council will make safe and efficient arrangements for the making of its payments.

Following authorisation under Financial Regulation 5 above, the council, a duly delegated
committee or, if so delegated, the Chief Officer or RFO shall give instruction that a payment
shall be made.

All payments shall be effected by cheque or other instructions to the council's bankers, or
otherwise, in accordance with a resolution of council or duly delegated committee.

Cheques or orders for payment drawn on the bank account in accordance with the schedule
as presented to council or committee shall be signed by two members of council. A member
who is a bank signatory, having a connection by virtue of family or business relationships with
the beneficiary of a payment, must sheuld not, under normal circumstances, be a signatory to
the payment in question.

To indicate agreement of the details shown on the cheque or order for payment, the invoice
and other documentation shall be initialled by the signatories.

If thought appropriate by the council, payment for utility supplies (energy, telephone and
water) and any National Non-Domestic Rates may be made by variable direct debit provided
that the instructions are signed by two members and any payments are reported to council
as made. The approval of the use of a variable direct debit shall be renewed by resolution of
the council at least every two years.

«------1 Formatted: Colorful List - Accent 11, Justified, Indent: Left:
0 cm, Hanging: 1 cm, Space Before: 0.6 line, After: 0.6 line,
Line spacing: Multiple 1.15 li, Don't hyphenate, Tab stops:
-2.54 cm, Left + -1,27 cm, Left + 1.9 cm, Left + 2.54 em,
Left

CHAPS methods provided that the instructions for each payment are signed, or otherwise
evidenced, by two authorised bank signatories, are retained and any payments are reported
to council as made. The approval of the use of BACS or CHAPS shall be renewed by resolution
of the council at least every two years.
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£.12.6.8. No employee or councillor shall disclose any PIN or password, relevant to the working of the
council or its bank accounts, to any person not authorised in writing by the council or a duly
delegated committee.

£-14.6.9. Regular back-up copies of the records on any computer shall be made and shall be stored
securely away from the computer in question, and preferably off site.

6.15.6.10. The council, and any members using computers for the council’s financial business, shall
ensure that anti-virus, anti-spyware and firewall software with automatic updates, together
with a high level of security, is used.

6.16.6.11. Where internet banking arrangements are made with any bank, the Chief Officer and the
RFO shall be appointed as Service Administrators. The bank mandate approved by the council
shall identify a number of councillors who will be authorised to approve transactions on those
accounts. The bank mandate will state clearly the amounts of payments that can be instructed
by the use of the Service Administrator alone, or by the Service Administrator with a stated
number of approvals.

6.17.6.12. Access to any internet banking accounts will be directly to the access page (which may be
saved under “favourites”), and not through a search engine or e-mail link. Remembered or
saved passwords facilities must not be used on any computer used for council banking work.
Breach of this Regulation will be treated as a very serious matter under these regulations.

618:6.13. Changes to account details for suppliers, which are used for internet banking may only
be changed on written hard copy notification by the supplier and supported by hard copy
authority for change signed by the Chief Officer and the RFO. A programme of regular checks
of standing data with suppliers will be followed by the RFO-

specifically restricted to use by the Chief Officer and shall be subject to automatic payment in
full at each month-end. In the absence of the Chief Officer any two from the Management
Team (currently the RFO, Deputy CO, Town Hall Manager, Streetscape Manager) may
authorise use of the credit card or trade card. Full details of all such transactions are to be
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advised by the RFO to the CO on his return. VAT invoices must be obtained where possible.

6.:20.6.15. The RFO may provide petty cash to officers for the purpose of defraying operational and

7.

74.

T2,

7.3.

7.4.

7.5.

other expenses. Vouchers for payments made shall be forwarded to the RFO with a claim for
reimbursement.

a)  The RFO shall maintain a petty cash float of £200 for the purpose of defraying
operational and other expenses. Vouchers for payments made from petty cash shall be
kept to substantiate the payment.

b)  Income received must not be paid into the petty cash float but must be separately
banked, as provided elsewhere in these regulations.

c)  Payments to maintain the petty cash float shall be shown separately on the schedule of
payments presented to council under 5.2 above.

PAYMENT OF SALARIES

As an employer, the council shall make arrangements to meet fully the statutory requirements
placed on all employers by PAYE and National Insurance legislation. The payment of all salaries
shall be made in accordance with payroll records and the rules of PAYE and National Insurance
currently operating, and salary rates shall be as agreed by council, or duly delegated
committee.

Payment of salaries and payment of deductions from salary such as may be required to be
made for tax, national insurance and pension contributions, or similar statutory or
discretionary deductions must be made in accordance with the payroll records and on the
appropriate dates stipulated in employment contracts, provided that each payment is
reported to the next available council meeting, as set out in these regulations above.

No changes shall be made to any employee’s pay, emoluments, or terms and conditions of
employment without the prior consent of the relevant committee.

Each and every payment to employees of net salary and to the appropriate creditor of the
statutory and discretionary deductions shall be recorded. This confidential record is not open
to inspection or review (under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 or otherwise) other than:

a) by any councillor who can demonstrate a need to know;
b) by theinternal auditor;
c)  bythe external auditor; or

d) by any person authorised under Audit Commission Act 1998, or any superseding
legislation.

The total of such payments in each calendar month shall be reported with all other payments
as made as may be required under these Financial Regulations, to ensure that only payments
due for the period have actually been paid.
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7.6. An effective system of personal performance management should be maintained for the
senior officers.

7.7. Any termination payments shall be supported by a clear business case and reported to the
council. Termination payments shall only be autharised by council.

7.8. Before employing interim staff the council must consider a full business case.
8. LOANS AND INVESTMENTS

8.1 All borrowings shall be effected in the name of the council, after obtaining any necessary
borrowing approval. Any application for borrowing approval shall be approved by Council as
to terms and purpose. The application for borrowing approval, and subsequent arrangements
for the loan shall only be approved by full council.

8.2. Any financial arrangement which does not require formal borrowing approval from the

Secretary of State/Welsh-Assembly Geverament (such as Hire Purchase or Leasing of tangible
assets) shall be subject to approval by the full council. In each case a report in writing shall be
provided to council in respect of value for money for the proposed transaction.

8.3 T T i bacainat i . ; s o
¢ ¢ et of 4 ” :
: chief Of ae0.
2.4.8.3. Allloans and investments shall be negotiated in the name of the council and shall be for a set
period in accordance with council policy.

2584, The council shall consider the need for an Investment Strategy and Policy which, if drawn up,
shall be in accordance with relevant regulations, proper practices and guidance. Any Strategy
and Policy shall be reviewed by the council at least annually.

2.6.8.5. All investments of money under the control of the council shall be in the name of the council.

8.7.8.6. All investment certificates and other documents relating thereto shall be retained in the
custody of the RFO.

2.2.8.7. Paymentsin respect of short term or long term investments, including transfers between bank
accounts held in the same bank, or branch, shall be made in accordance with Regulation 5
(Authorisation of payments) and Regulation 6 (Instructions for payments).

9. INCOME

9.1. The collection of all sums due to the council shall be the responsibility of and under the
supervision of the RFO.,
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9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

25

9.6.
9.7.
9.8.

9.9.

10.

10.1.

10.2.

10.3.

10.4.

10.5.

11.

Particulars of all charges to be made for work done, services rendered or goods supplied shall
be agreed annually by the council, notified to the RFO and the RFO shall be responsible for the
collection of all accounts due to the council.

The council will review all fees and charges at least annually, following a report of the Chief
Officer.

Any sums found to be irrecoverable and any bad debts shall be reported to the council and
shall be written off in the year.

All sums received on behalf of the council shall be banked intact as directed by the RFO. Inall
cases, all receipts shall be deposited with the council's bankers with such frequency as the
RFO considers necessary.

The origin of each receipt shall be entered on the paying-in slip.
Personal cheques shall not be cashed out of money held on behalf of the council.

The RFO shall promptly complete any VAT Return that is required. Any repayment claim due
in accordance with VAT Act 1994 section 33 shall be made at least annually coinciding with
the financial year end.

Where any significant sums of cash are regularly received by the council, the RFO shall take
such steps as are agreed by the council to ensure that more than one person is present when
the cash is counted in the first instance, that there is a reconciliation to some form of control
such as ticket issues, and that appropriate care is taken in the security and safety of individuals
banking such cash.

ORDERS FOR WORK, GOODS AND SERVICES

An official order or letter shall be issued for all work, goods and services unless a formal
contract is to be prepared or an official order would be inappropriate. Copies of orders shall
be retained.

Order books shall be controlled by the RFO.

All members and officers are responsible for obtaining value for money at all times. An officer
issuing an official order shall ensure as far as reasonable and practicable that the best available
terms are obtained in respect of each transaction, usually by obtaining three or more
quotations or estimates from appropriate suppliers, subject to any de minimis provisions in
Regulation 11.1 below.

A member may not issue an official order or make any contract on behalf of the council.

The RFO shall verify the lawful nature of any proposed purchase before the issue of any
order, and in the case of new or infrequent purchases or payments, the RFO shall ensure
that the statutory authority shall be reported to the meeting at which the order is approved
so that the minutes can record the power being used.

CONTRACTS
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11.1. Procedures as to contracts are laid down as follows:

a.

ii.

jii.

iv.

V.

Vi
b.
C.
d.
e.

Every contract shall comply with these financial regulations, and no exceptions shall be
made otherwise than in an emergency provided that this regulation need not apply to
contracts which relate to items (i) to (vi) below:

for the supply of gas, electricity, water, sewerage and telephone services;

for specialist services such as are provided by solicitors, accountants, surveyors and
planning consultants;

for work to be executed or goods or materials to be supplied which consist of repairs
to or parts for existing machinery or equipment or plant;

for work to be executed or goods or materials to be supplied which constitute an
extension of an existing contract by the council;

for additional audit work of the external auditor up to an estimated value of £500 (in
excess of this sum the Chief Officer and RFO shall act after consultation with the Chair
and Vice Chair of council); and

for goods or materials proposed to be purchased which are proprietary articles and
/ or are only sold at a fixed price.

Where the council intends to procure or award a public supply contract, public service
contract or public works contract as defined by The Public Contracts Regulations 2015
(“the Regulations”) which is valued at £25,000 or more, the council shall comply with
the relevant requirements of the Regulations®.

The full requirements of The Regulations, as applicable, shall be followed in respect of
the tendering and award of a public supply contract, public service contract or public
works contract which exceed thresholds in The Regulations set by the Public Contracts
Directive 2014/24/EU (which may change from time to time)?.

When applications are made to waive financial regulations relating to contracts to
enable a price to be negotiated without competition the reason shall be embodied in a
recommendation to the council.

Such invitation to tender shall state the general nature of the intended contract and the
Chief Officer shall obtain the necessary technical assistance to prepare a specification
in appropriate cases. The invitation shall in addition state that tenders must be
addressed to the Chief Officer in the ordinary course of post. Each tendering firm shall

1 The Regulations require councils to use the Contracts Finder website to advertise contract opportunities,
set out the procedures to be followed in awarding new contracts and to publicise the award of new contracts
2 Thresholds currently applicable are:

a. For public supply and public service contracts 209,000 Euros (£164,176)

b. For public works contracts 5,225,000 Euros (£4,104,394)
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12.

12.1.

12.2.

12.3.

13,

13.1.

be supplied with a specifically marked envelope in which the tender is to be sealed and
remain sealed until the prescribed date for opening tenders for that contract.

fi All sealed tenders shall be opened at the same time on the prescribed date by the Chief
Officer in the presence of at least one member of council.

g.  Anyinvitation to tender issued under this regulation shall be subject to Standing Orders,
and shall refer to the terms of the Bribery Act 2010.

h.  When it is to enter into a contract of less than £25,000 in value for the supply of goods
or materials or for the execution of works or specialist services other than such goods,
materials, works or specialist services as are excepted as set out in paragraph (a) the
Chief Officer or RFO shall obtain 3 quotations (priced descriptions of the proposed
supply); where the value is below £3,000 and above £500 the Chief Officer or RFO shall
strive to obtain 3 estimates. Otherwise, Regulation 10.3 above shall apply.

i. The council shall not be obliged to accept the lowest or any tender, quote or estimate.

j.  Should it occur that the council, or duly delegated committee, does not accept any
tender, quote or estimate, the work is not allocated and the council requires further
pricing, provided that the specification does not change, no person shall be permitted
to submit a later tender, estimate or quote who was present when the original decision
making process was being undertaken.

PAYMENTS UNDER CONTRACTS FOR BUILDING OR OTHER CONSTRUCTION WORKS (PUBLIC
WORKS CONTRACTS)

Payments on account of the contract sum shall be made within the time specified in the
contract by the RFO upon authorised certificates of the architect or other consultants engaged
to supervise the contract (subject to any percentage withholding as may be agreed in the
particular contract).

Where contracts provide for payment by instalments the RFO shall maintain a record of all
such payments. In any case where it is estimated that the total cost of work carried out under
a contract, excluding agreed variations, will exceed the contract sum of 5% or more a report
shall be submitted to the council.

Any variation to a contract or addition to or omission from a contract must be approved by
the council and Chief Officer to the contractor in writing, the council being informed where
the final cost is likely to exceed the financial provision.

STORES AND EQUIPMENT

The officer in charge of each section shall be responsible for the care and custody of stores
and equipment in that section.
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13.2.

13.3.
13.4.

14,

14.1.

14.2.

14.3.

14.4,

14.5.

14.6.

15.

15.1.

15.2.

Delivery notes shall be obtained in respect of all goods received into store or otherwise
delivered and goods must be checked as to order and quality at the time delivery is made.

Stocks shall be kept at the minimum levels consistent with operational requirements.

The RFO shall be responsible for periodic checks of stocks and stores at least annually.

ASSETS, PROPERTIES AND ESTATES

The Chief Officer shall make appropriate arrangements for the custody of all title deeds and
Land Registry Certificates of properties held by the council. The RFO shall ensure a record is
maintained of all properties held by the council, recording the location, extent, plan,
reference, purchase details, nature of the interest, tenancies granted, rents payable and
purpose for which held in accordance with Accounts and Audit Regulations.

No tangible moveable property shall be purchased or otherwise acquired, sold, leased or
otherwise disposed of, without the authority of the council, together with any other consents
required by law, save where the estimated value of any one item of tangible movable property
does not exceed £3,000.

No real property (interests in land) shall be sold, leased or otherwise disposed of without the
authority of the council, together with any other consents required by law. In each case a
report in writing shall be provided to council in respect of valuation and surveyed condition of
the property (including matters such as planning permissions and covenants) together with a
proper business case (including an adequate level of consultation with the electorate).

No real property (interests in land) shall be purchased or acquired without the authority of
the full council. In each case a report in writing shall be provided to council in respect of
valuation and surveyed condition of the property (including matters such as planning
permissions and covenants) together with a proper business case (including an adequate level
of consultation with the electorate).

Subject only to the limit set in Regulation 14.2 above, no tangible moveable property shall be
purchased or acquired without the authority of the full council. In each case a report in writing
shall be provided to council with a full business case.

The RFO shall ensure that an appropriate and accurate Register of Assets and Investments is
kept up to date. The continued existence of tangible assets shown in the Register shall be
verified at least annually, possibly in conjunction with a health and safety inspection of assets.

INSURANCE

Following the annual risk assessment (per Regulation 16), the RFO shall effect all insurances
and negotiate all claims on the council's insurers in consultation with the Chief Officer.

The Chief Officer shall give prompt notification to the RFO of all new risks, properties or
vehicles which require to be insured and of any alterations affecting existing insurances.
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15.3.

15.4.

15.5.

16.

16.1.

16.2.

17.

17.1.

17.2.

The RFO shall keep a record of all insurances effected by the council and the property and
risks covered thereby and annually review it.

The RFO shall be notified of any loss liability or damage or of any event likely to lead to a claim,
and shall report these to council at the next available meeting.

All appropriate members and employees of the council shall be included in a suitable form of
security or fidelity guarantee insurance which shall cover the maximum risk exposure as
determined annually by the council, or duly delegated committee.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The council is responsible for putting in place arrangements for the management of risk. The
Chief Officer shall prepare, for approval by the council, risk management policy statements in
respect of all activities of the council. Risk policy statements and consequential risk
management arrangements shall be reviewed by the council at least annually.

When considering any new activity, the Chief Officer shall prepare a draft risk assessment
including risk management proposals for consideration and adoption by the council.

SUSPENSION AND REVISION OF FINANCIAL REGULATIONS

It shall be the duty of the council to review the Financial Regulations of the council from time
to time. The Chief Officer shall make arrangements to monitor changes in legislation or proper
practices and shall advise the council of any requirement for a consequential amendment to
these Financial Regulations.

The council may, by resolution of the council duly notified prior to the relevant meeting of
council, suspend any part of these Financial Regulations provided that reasons for the
suspension are recorded and that an assessment of the risks arising has been drawn up and
presented in advance to all members of council.,
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CONGLETON TOWN COUNCIL

COMMITTEE REPORTS AND UPDATES

COMMITTEE: Finance and Policy Committee

MEETING DATE | 02/07/2020 7pm LOCATION Via Zoom

AND TIME

REPORT FROM | Jackie Potts — Support Manager and Responsible Financial Officer

AGENDA ITEM 16

REPORT TITLE | Annual Governance and Accountability Return (AGAR)2019/ 2020

Background
Smaller Authorities’ Audit Appointments Ltd (SAAA) replaced the Audit Commission
in 2017 to procure external audit services under the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014 to Town and Parish Councils. For those, like Congleton Town Council,
with income or expenditure under £6.5 million per year (referred to as smaller
authorities), it operates a limited assurance regime. The regime is designed to
provide a level of assurance at a cost proportionate to the amounts of public money
managed by these smaller authorities. The auditors undertake a limited range of
specified procedures to give assurance about the accounting statements.

Updates
Normally all documentation has to be received by the external auditor (currently
PKF Littlejohn) by 30" June following the financial year end of 31t March. However,
in response to the Covid-19 pandemic the Ministry of Housing, Communities and
Local Government issued a statutory instrument amending this deadline and
documents now have to be received by 315 July 2020. Also the dates for the period
of public rights (where members of the public can request to see the accounts and
documentation) has been amended and will now be 30 working days after the
AGAR has been approved at full council.

Decision To approve the AGAR and the Unaudited Financial Statements and recommend

Requested that they are approved by Council at the meeting on 23" July 2020




Item 16 - Appendix 1

Annual Governance and Accountability Return 2019/20 Part 3

To be completed by Local Councils, Internal Drainage Boards and

other Smaller Authorities™:
o where the higher of gross income or gross expenditure exceeded £25,000

but did not exceed £6.5 million; or
+ where the higher of gross income or gross expenditure was £25,000

or less but that:
« are unable to certify themselves as exempt (fee payable); or
« have requested a limited assurance review (fee payable)

Guidance notes on completing Part 3 of the Annual Governance and

Accountability Return 2019/20

1. Every smaller authority in England that either received gross income or incurred gross expenditure
exceeding £25,000 must complete Part 3 of the Annual Governance and Accauntability Return at
the end of each financial year in accordance with Proper Practices.

2. The Annual Governance and Accountability Return is made up of three parts, pages 3 to 6:

« The Annual Internal Audit Report is completed by the authority’s internal auditor.
+ Sections 1 and 2 are to be completed and approved by the authority.
« Section 3 is completed by the external auditor and will be returned to the authority.

3. The authority must approve Section 1, Annual Governance Statement, before approving Section 2,
Accounting Statements, and both must be approved and published before 1 July 2020.

4, An authority with either gross income or gross expenditure exceeding £25,000 or an authority with
heither income nor expenditure exceeding £25,000, but which is unable to certify itself as exempt, or is
requesting a limited assurance review, must return to the external auditor by email or post (not both) no
later than 30 June 2020. Reminder letters will incur a charge of £40 +VAT.

« the Annual Governance and Accountability Return Sections 1 and 2, together with

» a bank reconciliation as at 31 March 2020

« an explanation of any significant year on year variances in the accounting statements

« natification of the commencement date of the period for the exercise of public rights

+ Annual Internal Audit Report 2019/20
Unless requested, do not send any additional documents to your external auditor. Your external auditor will
ask for any additional documents needed.
Once the external auditor has completed the limited assurance review and is able to give an opinion, the
Annual Governance and Accountability Section1, Section 2 and Section 3 — External Auditor Report
and Certificate will he returned to the authority by email or post.

Publication Requirements
Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, authorities must publish the following information on

a publicly accessible website:
Before 1 July 2020 authorities must publish:
+ Notice of the period for the exercise of public rights and a declaration that the accounting statements

are as yet unaudited;
« Section 1 - Annual Governance Statement 2019/20, approved and signed, page 4
« Section 2 - Accounting Statements 2019/20, approved and signed, page §

Not later than 30 September 2020 authorities must publish:

« Notice of conclusion of audit

« Section 3 - External Auditor Report and Certificate

+ Sections 1 and 2 of AGAR including any amendments as a result of the limited assurance review.

It is recommended as best practice, to avoid any potential confusion by local electors and Interested
parties, that you also publish the Annual Internal Audit Report, page 3.

*for a complete list of bodies that may be smailer authorities refer to schedule 2 to the Local Audit and Accountabllity Act 2014.

Annual Governance and Accountability Return 2019/20 Part 3 Page 1 of 6
Local Councils, Internal Drainage Boards and other Smaller Authorities*



Guidance notes on completing Part 3 of the Annual Governance and
Accountability Return 2019/20

The authority must comply with Proper Practices in completing Sections 1 and 2 of this Annual Governance and
Accountability Return. Proper Practices are found in the Practitioners’ Guide* which is updated from time to time
and contains everything needed to prepare successfully for the financial year-end and the subsequent work by
the external auditor.

Make sure that the Annual Governance and Accountability Return is complete (no highlighted boxes left empty),
and is properly signed and dated. Where amendments are made by the authority to the AGAR after it has
been approved by the authority and before it has been reviewed by the external auditor, the Chairman and
RFO should initial the amendments and if necessary republish the amended AGAR and recommence the
period for the exercise of public rights. If the AGAR contains unapproved or unexplained amendments, it may
be returned and additional costs will be incurred.

The authority should receive and note the annual internal audit report if possible before approving the annual
governance statement and the accounts,

Use the checklist provided below to review the Annual Governance and Accountability Return for completeness
before returning it to the external auditor by email or post (not both) no later than 30 June 2020.

Do not send the external auditor any information not specifically requested. However, you must inform your
external auditor about any change of Clerk, Responsible Financial Officer or Chairman, and provide
relevant email addresses and telephone numbers.

Make sure that the copy of the bank reconciliation to be sent to your external auditor with the Annual Governance
and Accountability Return covers all the bank accounts. If the authority holds any short-term investments, note their
value on the bank reconciliation. The external auditor must be able to agree the bank reconciliation to Box 8 on the
accounting statements (Section 2, page 5). An explanation must be provided of any difference between Box 7 and
Box 8. More help on bank reconciliation is avallable in the Practitioners’ Guide™.

Explain fully significant variances in the accounting statements on page 6. Do not just send a copy of the detailed
accounting records instead of this explanation. The external auditor wants to know that you understand the reasons
for all variances. Include complete numerical and narrative analysis to support the full variance.

if the external auditor has to review unsolicited informatian, or receives an incomplete bank reconciliation, or
variances are not fully explained, additional costs may be incurred.

Make sure that the accounting statements add up and that the balance carried forward from the previous year
(Box 7 of 2019) equals the balance brought forward in the current year (Box 1 of 2020).

The Responsible Financial Officer (RFO), on behalf of the authority, must set the period for the exercise of public
rights. From the commencement date for a single period of 30 consecutive working days, the approved accounts
and accaunting records can be inspected. Whatever perlod the RFO sets it must include a common inspection
perlod — during which the accounts and accounting records of all smaller authorities must be available for public
inspection — of the first ten working days of July.

The authority must publish the information required by Regulation 16 (2), Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015,
including the period for the exercise of public rights and the name and address of the external auditor before

1 July 2020,

All sections

Have all highlighted boxes have been completed?

Has all additional information requested, Including the dates set for the period
for the exercise of public rights, been provided for the external auditor?

Internal Audit Report | Haveall highlighted boxes been completed by the internal auditer and explanations provided?j -y..-

Section 1 For any statement to which the response Is ‘no', has an explanation been published? ||

Section 2 Has the authority's approval of the accounting statements been confirmed by

the signature of the Chairman of the approval meeting? )
Has an explanation of significant variations from last year to this year been published?
Has the bank reconciliation as at 31 March 2020 been reconciled to Box 87

Has an explanation of any difference between Box 7 and Box 8 been provided?

Sections 1 and 2 Trust funds — have all disclosures been made if the autharity as a body corporate is a

sole managing trustee? NB: do not send trust accounting statements unless requested. A cin

Annual Governance and Accountability Return 2019/20 Part 3 Page 2 of 6
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Annual Internal Audit Report 2019/20

ConglE T&  Townd  Comrell-

This authority’s internal auditor, acting Independently and on thebasis of an assessment of tsk,
cartied out a selective assessment of compliance with relevant procedures and controls to be in
operation during the financial year ended 31 March 2020.

The internal audit for 2019/20 has been carried out in accordance with this atithority's needs

and planned coverage. On the basis of the findings in the areas examined, the Interrial audit
conclusions are summarised in this table. Set out below are the objectives of internal control

and alongside are the internal audit conclusions on whether, in all significant respects, the contral
objectives were being achieved throughout the finandial year to a standard adequate to meet the
needs of this authority.

A. Appropriate accounting recards have baen properly kept throtighout the financlal yaar, V4

B, This aulhority complled wilh its financlal regulations, payments were suppoHed by involces, all v
expendilure was approved and VAT was appropriately acecunted for.

C. This aulhority assessed the significant risks to achieving its obfaclives and reviewed ihe adequacy i
of arrangements to manage thesa.

D. The precept or rates raquirament resulted from an adequate budgetary process; pragress against ¥
the budget was ragularly monitored; and raserves were appropriata.

£. Expected inconte was fully received, based on gorrect prices, properly recorded and prompliy o

i banked; and VAT was appropriately accounted for,

F. Petly cash payments Were properly supported by recelpls, all petty cash expenditure was o
appraved and VAT appropriately aceounted for.

G. Salarles o employees and allawances to members wara pald In accordance with this autharlty’s

1 approvals, and PAYE and NI requirements were praperly applied, 4

H, Asset and Investments registers were complete and accurate and proparly malntained, A

|I._ Perlodle and year-end hank account raconelllations were properly carvled out. v

J, Accounting statements prapared during the year were prepared on the corract accounting basls
{recelpts and payments or income and expenditure), agreed to the cash hoak, supported by an Vv
adequate audit trall from underying records and where appropriate debtors end crediters were
properly recordad,

1. JF the authorily certified llself as exempt from a limited assurance review In 2018/18, It met the
exemplion critera and correclly declared itself exempt. (if the sutharflly had a limited assurance v’
review of its 2078/19 AGAR lick “nal coverad’)

L. The aulhorlty has demonstrated that during summer 2019 It carrectly provided for the exercise
of publio Hghts as required by the Accouints and Audit Regulations. v

M. (For local counclis anly) -
Trust funds {Including charitable) ~ The councll met Its responsibillties as a truslee. |

For any other risk areas identified by this authority adequate contrels existed (llst any other sisk areas on separate sheets if needed),
Date(s) internal audit undertaken Name of persop whq carrled gu_l the internal audit

asJvo |4 2?/01/'2.0 (fg/‘,g/% gl e

Signature of person who w ‘j
carrled out the internal audit = Date

*If the responss Is ‘na’ you must include a note to state the Implicatlona and actlon balng taken to addras’ any waakness in corttral
identfiad (add separate sheets If needed).

**Note: If the response | ‘nal coverad' please stale when tha most recent internal audit work was dane In this area and when It is
next planned, ar, I coverage Is not requlred, the annual internal audit report must axplain why nat (add aaparate shests If needed).

J.{{ :

ag/:?_o
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Section 1 — Annual Governance Statement 2019/20

We acknowledge as the members of;

Congleton Town Council -

our responsibility for ensuring that there is a sound system of internal control, including arrangements for
the preparation of the Accounting Statements. We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, with
respect to the Accounting Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, that:

prepared Its accounling statements In accordance

1. We have ul In place arragements for etf!lve financial
{ with the Accounts and Audit Regulations.

management during the year, and for the preparation of
the accounting statements,

We malntalned an adequate system of internal control
including measures deslgned to prevent and detect fraud
and corruption and reviewed lis effecliveness.

| made proper arrangements and accepted responsibliity
- .| for safeguarding the public money and resources in
) Its charge.

L2t

| has only done what It has the legal power to do and has
complied with Proper Practices in doing so.

[

. We took all reasonable steps to assure ourselves
thel there are no malters of actual or potentlal
non-compliance with faws, regulations and Proper
Practices that could have a slgnificant financial effect
on the abllity of this authorlty o conduct its
business or manage its finances.

4. We provided proper opportunity during the year for
the exercise of electors' rights In accordance with the
requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations.

6. We carrled out an assessment of the risks facing this
authority and took appropriate steps to manage those
risks, including the Introduction of internal controls and/or
external Insurance cover where required.

6. We maintained throughout the year an adequate and
effective system of Internal audit of the accounting
racords and conlrol systems.

7. We took appropriate action on all maiters raised
in reports from intemal and external audit.

8. We considered whether any litigation, liabifitles or
commilments, events or transactions, occurring elther
during or after the year-end, have a financlal impact on
this authority and, where appropriate, have Included them
In the accounting statements.

9. (For local counclls only) Trust funds Including
charitable. In our capaclly as the sole managing
trustee we discharged our accountability
responsibilities for the fund(s)/assets, including
financial reporting and, If required, independent
examinatlon or audit,

*Please provide explanations to the external auditor on a separate sheel for each ‘No’ response and describe how the
authority will address the weaknesses identified. These sheets must be published with the Annual Governance Statement.

- i| during the year gave all persons Interested the opportunity to
1| Inspect and ask questions about this authorlly's accounts.

| consldered and documented the financial and other risks it
1 faces and dealt with them properly.

! i arranged for a competent person, independent of the financial
| controls and procedures, to give an objeclive view on whether
+| Internal controls meet the needs of this smaller authority.

5| responded to matters brought to its attention by Internal and
- external audit.

- disclosed everything It should have about its business activity
.| during the year Including events taking place after the year

-| end if relevant.

| has met all of its responsibllities where, as a body
corporale, it is a sole managing trustee of a local
trust or trusts.

This Annual Governance Statement was approved at a Signed by the Chairman and Clerk of the meeting where
meeting of the authority on: 7 7 approval was given:
ST 0310712020 e
and recorded as minute reference: Chalrman
| Clerk

Other information required by the Transparency Godes (not part of Annual Governance Statement)
Au_thorlly web address

www.congleton-tc.gov.uk
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Section 2 — Accounting Statements 2019/20 for

Congleton Town Council

1. Balances brought Total balances and reserves at the beginning of the year

forward 707,750 807,075| as recorded in the financial records. Value must agree to
Box 7 of previous year.

2. (+) Precept or Rates and ' Total amount of precept (or for IDBs rates and levies)
Levies 836,152 884,152 | raceived or recelvable in the year. Exclude any grants

received,

3. (+) Total other receipts h Total income or recelpts as recorded in the cashbook less

655,526 548,602 | the precept or rates/levies received (line 2). Include any
grants received.

4. (~) Staff costs s © " Total expenditure or payments made to and on behalf

7 : of all employees. Include gross salaries and wages,
699,969 ~706,581 employers Ni contributions, employers pension
contributions, gratuities and severance payments.

&. (~) Loan interest/capital el a3 Total expenditure or payments of capital and interest
repayments -58,014 -42 432 | made during the year on the authority’s borrowings (if any).

6. (-) All other payments e B ' o Total expenditure or payments as recorded in the cash-

. =b34,370  -604,848| book less staff costs (line 4) and loan Interest/capital
R repayments (line 5).

7. (=) Balances carried e ' Total balances and reserves at the end of the year. Must
forward 807,075 885,968 equal (1+2+3) - (4+5+6).

8. Total value of cash and EL R RE ) The sum of all current and deposit bank accounts, cash
short term investments . - 833,590 918,520 | holdings and short term investments held as at 31 March —

o To agree with bank reconciliation.

9. Total fixed assets plus = - The value of all the properiy the authority owns - it is made
long term investments 2,866,258 2,869,088 | up of all its fixed assets and long term investments as at
and assets 31 March.

10. Total borrowings o B i The outstanding capital balance as at 31 March of alf loans

373,406 347,563 from third parties (including PWLB).

11. (For Local Councils Only) Disclosure note The Council, as a body corporate, acls as sole trustee for

re Trust funds (including charitable) and s responsible for managing Trust funds or assets.
4| N.B, The figures in the accounting statements above do
1 not include any Trust transactions.

| certify that for the year ended 31 March 2020 the Accounting
Statements in this Annual Governance and Accountability
Return have been prepared on either a receipts and payments
or income and expenditure basis following the guidance In
Governance and Accountability for Smaller Autharities — a
Practitioners’ Gulde to Proper Practices and present fairly
the financial position of this authority.

Signed by Responsible Financial Officer before being
presented to the authority for approval

T 23/07/2020
Date

| confirm that these Accounting Statements were
approved by this authority on this date:

23/07/2020

as recorded in minute reference:

" | Signed by Chairman of the meeting where the Accounting
| Statements were approved

Annual Governance and Accountability Return 2019/20 Part 3
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Section 3 — External Auditor Report and Certificate 2019/20

In respect of - Congleton Town Council

1 Respective responsibilities of the body and the auditor

This authority is respansible for ensuring that its financial management is adequate and effective and that

it has a sound system of internal control. The authority prepares an Annual Governance and Accountability

Return in accordance with Proper Practices which:

* summarises the accounting records for the year ended 31 March 2020; and

+ confirms and provides assurance on those matters that are relevant to our duties and responsibilities as
external auditors,

Our responsibility is to review Sections 1 and 2 of the Annual Governance and Accountability Return in accordance

with guidance issued by the National Audit Office (NAO) on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General

(see note below). Our work does not constitute an audit carried out in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (UK & Ireland) and does not pravide the same level of assurance that such an audit would do.

2 External auditor report 2019/20

(Except for the matters reported below)* on the basis of our review of Sectlons 1 and 2 of the Annual Governance and Accountability Relurn, In
our opinion the information In Sections 1 and 2 of the Annual Governance and Accountability Return Is In aceardance with Proper Practices and
no other matters have come to our attention glving cause for concern that relevant leglslation and regulatory requirements have not been met.

(*delete as appropriate).

(continue ona separate sheet if required)

Other matters not affecling our apinion which we draw to the attention of the authority:

(continue on a separate sheel if required)

3 External auditor certificate 2019/20

We certify/do not certify* that we have completed our review of Sections 1 and 2 of the Annual Governance and
Accountability Return, and discharged our responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, for

the year ended 31 March 2020,

*We do not certify completion because:

External Audilqr Namer

External Auditor Signature o T T U pate
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Congleton Town Council

Statement of Responsibilities
31 March 2020

The Council's Responsibilities
The council is required:
«  to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs

«  to secure that one of its officers (R.F.0.) has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. AL this
council that officer is the Responsible Financial Officer, and

+  to manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets.
The Responsible Financial Officer's Responsibilities

The R.F.O. is responsible for the preparation of the council's Unaudited Financial Statements in accordance with Part 4
of the “Governance and Accountability for Local Councils — A Practitioners Guide (England) (as amended)” (the guide),
so far as is applicable to this council, to present a true and fair view of the financial position of the council at 31 March
2020 and its income and expenditure for the year then ended.

In preparing the Unaudited Financial Statements, the R.F.O. has:

« selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently

+  made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent, and

«  complied with the guide.
The R.F.O. has also:

«  kept proper accounting records, which were up to date, and

+  taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
Responsible Financial Officer's Certificate

I further certify that the Unaudited Financial Statements present a true and fair view of the financial position of
Congleton Town Council at 31 March 2020, and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2020.

SIENEA: oivivevieeiiveeirreee e
Mrs J. Potts FMAAT, CiLCA- Responsible Financial Officer
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Congleton Town Council

Statement of Accounting Policies
31 March 2020

Auditors
The name and address of the External Auditors is provided for information only.

These Statements are not subject to audit and the External Auditors have no responsibility for them.

Accounting Convention

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective
April 2008) (FRSSE) issued by the Accounting Standards Board, as applied to Local Councils by part 4 of Governance
and Accountability for Local Councils — A Practitioners Guide (England) (the guide). Comparative figures have been
restated to conform to the revised formats where appropriate. Certain requirements have been omitted for clarity and
simplicity as these statements are not subject to audit. They are produced in support of the council's audited Statement
of Accounts contained within the Annual Return Statement of Accounts.

These accounts have been prepared having regard to the fundamental accounting concepts of: Going Concern,
Prudence, Accruals, Relevance, Consistency, Reliability, Comparability, Understandability and Materiality.

The accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

Fixed Assets

All expenditure in excess of £1000 (on any one item or group of similar items) on the acquisition, creation or
enhancement of fixed assets is capitalised on an accruals basis in the accounts. Expenditure on fixed assets is
capitalised, provided that the fixed asset yields benefits to the authority and the services it provides, for a period of more
than one year. Fixed assets are valued on the basis recommended by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA) and in accordance with the statements of asset valuation principles and guidance notes issued by
the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS). The closing balances are stated on the following basis:

all assets are included in the balance sheet at the lower of cost (estimated where not known) or estimated realisable
value, except that,

certain community assets are the subject of restrictive covenants as to their use and /or future disposal. Such assets
are therefore considered to have no appreciable realisable value and are included at nominal value only.

The surplus or deficit arising on periodic revaluations of fixed assets has been credited or debited to the Revaluation
Reserve. Subsequent revaluations of fixed assets are planned at five yearly intervals, although material changes to asset
valuations will be adjusted in the interim period, should they occur.

In accordance with Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 15, depreciation is provided on all operational buildings (but
not land), as well as other assets.
Depreciation Policy

Buildings and leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of 50 years or the anticipated remaining useful lives on a
straight line basis.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Non Operational Assets (including Investment Properties) are not depreciated.

Vehicles, plant, equipment and furniture are depreciated over 3 to 10 years on a straight line basis.
Infrastructure assets are depreciated over 10 years at 10% per annum straight line,

Community assets are not depreciated, because they are of either intrinsic or purely nominal value.

Depreciation is accounted for as a Balance Sheet movement only, not through the Income and Expenditure Account.
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Congleton Town Council
Statement of Accounting Policies
31 March 2020

Grants or Contributions from Government or Related Bodies
Capital Grants

Where a fixed asset has been acquired or improved with the financing either wholly or in part by a grant or contribution
from government or a related body, e.g. Sports Council, the amount of the grant has been credited to Deferred Grants
Account and carried forward. Grants so credited are released back to revenue over the life of the asset to match, and
thereby offset wholly or in part, depreciation charged.

Revenue Grants

Revenue grants are credited to income when conditions attached thereto have been fulfilled and/or equivalent
expenditure has been incurred. Grants received in respect of which the conditions have not been fulfilled, or expenditure
incurred, are carried forward as deferred revenue grants.

Investments

Tnvestments are included in the balance sheet at historic cost and realised gains or losses are taken into the income and
expenditure account as realised. Details are given at note 12.

Debtors and Creditors

The revenue accounts of the council are maintained on an accruals basis in accordance with the regulations. That is
sums due to or from the council during the year are included whether or not the cash has actually been received or paid
in the year. Exceptions to this are payment of regular quarterly and other accounts (e.g. telephones, electricity). This
policy is applied consistently each year. Therefore, it will not have a material effect on the year’s accounts or on the
council’s annual budget.

The council reviews the level of its commercial debtors on a regular basis and provisions are made, as required, where
the likelihood of amounts proving ultimately collectable is in doubt.

Value Added Tax

Income and Expenditure excludes any amounts related to VAT, as all VAT suffered/collected is recoverable from or
payable to HM Revenue and Customs. Any amounts not so recoverable are treated as a separate expense.

External Loan Repayments

The council accounts for loans on an accruals basis. Details of the council’s external borrowings are shown al note 15.

Leases

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to revenue on an accruals basis. Details of the council’s obligations
under operating leases are shown at note 16.
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Congleton Town Council

Statement of Accounting Policies
31 March 2020

Reserves

The council maintains certain reserves to meet general and specific future expenditure. The purpose of the council’s
reserves is explained in notes 18 to 20.

Certain reserves are maintained to manage the accounting processes for tangible fixed assets, available for sale
investments and retirement benefits. They do not represent usable resources for the council:

Revaluation Reserves — hold balances representing unrealised gains on the appropriate asset since 1™ April
2007.

Capital Financing Account — represent the council's investment of resources in such assets already made.

Interest Income

All interest receipts are credited initially to general funds.

Cost of Support Services

The costs of management and administration have been apportioned to services on an appropriate and consistent basis.

Pensions

The pension costs that are charged against precept in the council’s accounts, in respect of its employees, are equal to the
contributions paid to the funded pension scheme for those employees.

These contributions are determined by the fund’s actuary on a triennial basis and are set to meet 100% of the liabilities
of the pension fund, in accordance with relevant government regulations.

The next actuarial valuation is due at 31st March 2022 and any change in contribution rates as a result of that valuation
will take effect from st April 2023.
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Congleton Town Council

Income and Expenditure Account

31 March 2020

Income

Precept on Unitary Authority

Grants Receivable

Rents Receivable, Interest & Investment Income
Charges made for Services

Other Income

Total Income

Expenditure

Direct Service Costs:
Salaries & Wages
Grant-aid Expenditure
Other Costs

Democratic, Management & Civic Costs:
Salaries & Wages
Other Costs

Total Expenditure

Excess of Income over Expenditure for the year.

Exceptional Items
(Loss)/Profit on the disposal of fixed assets

Net Operating Surplus for Year

STATUTORY CHARGES & REVERSALS
Statutory Charge for Capital (i.e. Loan Capital Repaid)
Capital Expenditure charged to revenue

Reverse profit on asset disposals

Transfer (to) Earmarked Reserves

Surplus for the Year to General Fund
Net Surplus for the Year

The above Surplus for the Year has been applied for the Year to as follows:
Transfer (to) Earmarked Reserves

Surplus for the Year to General Fund

The council had no other recognisable gains and/or losses during the year.

Notes

20

2020 2019
£ £

884,152 836,152
30,623 18,739
4,983 3,773
512,530 527,950
457 2,189
1432754 1,388,803
(544,122)  (548,058)
(55398)  (77,755)
(498.181)  (401,825)
(162,459) (151,911
(55055)  (58,900)

(1,315,215) (1,238,449)

117,539 150,354
@3 607
15222 150,961
(25.843)  (41,188)
(12,803)  (9,841)
2,317 (607)
(61,233)  (89,208)
17,660 10,117
78,893 99,325
61,233 89,208
17,660 10,117
78,893 99,325

The notes on pages 12 to 19 form part of these unaudited statements.
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Congleton Town Council

Statement of Movement in Reserves

31 March 2020

Net
Movement in
Reserve Purpose of Reserve Notes 2020 Year 2019
£ £ £

Asset Revaluation Reserve  Store of gains on revaluation of 19 100,943 - 100,943
fixed assets

Capital Financing Account  Store of capital resources set aside 18 377,878 (3,160) 381,038
to purchase fixed assets

Earmarked Reserves Amounts set aside from revenue 20 667,407 61,233 606,174
to meet general and specific
future expenditure

General Fund Resources available to meet future 218,561 17,660 200,901
running costs

Total 1,364,789 75,733 1,289,056

The notes on pages 12 to 19 form part of these unaudited statements.
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Fixed Assets
Tangible Fixed Assets

Current Assets

Debtors and prepayments
Investments

Cash at bank and in hand

Current Liabilities
Current Portion of Long Term Borrowings
Creditors and income in advance

Net Current Assets

Total Assets Less Current Liabilities
Long Term Liabilities

Long-term borrowing
Deferred Grants

Total Assets Less Liabilities

Capital and Reserves
Revaluation Reserve
Capital Financing Reserve

EBarmarked Reserves
General Reserve

Congleton Town Council

Balance Sheet

31 March 2020

Notes

13
12

14

15
17

19
18

20

2020

26,038
300,000
618,520
944,558

(5,436)
(58,589)

2020 2019
£ £

2,013,957 2,074,257
29,678

300,000

533,590

863,268

(25,843)

(56,192)

880,533 781,233
2,894,490 2,855,490
(342,127)  (347,563)
(1,187,574)  (1,218,871)
1,364,789 "1-,_289,0_5_6
100,943 100,943
377,878 381,038
667,407 606,174
218,561 200,901
1,364,789 1,289,056

The Unaudited Financial Statements represent a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council as at 31
March 2020, and of its Income and Expenditure for the year.

These accounts were approved by the Council on 23rd July 2020 .

CllIr 8. A. Holland
Town Mayor

Mrs J. Potts FMAAT, CiLCA

Responsible Financial Officer

The notes on pages 12 to 19 form part of these unaudited statements.
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Congleton Town Council

Cash Flow Statement

31 March 2020

Notes 2020 2020 2019
£ £ £

REVENUE ACTIVITIES
Cuash outflows
Paid to and on behalf of employees (705,990) (700,254)
Other operating payments - (578,970) (555,397)

(1,284,960) (1,255,651)
Cash inflows
Precept on Unitary Authority 884,152 836,152
Cash received for services 513,784 534,480
Revenue grants received 30,623 . 18,739

1,428,559 1,389,371

Net cash inflow from Revenue Activities 21 143,599 133,720
SERVICING OF FINANCE
Cash outflows
Interest paid (24,973) (16,940)
Cash inflows
Interest received 4,950 3,585
Net cash (outflow) from Servicing of Finance (20,023) (13,355)
CAPITAL ACTIVITIES
Cash outflows
Purchase of fixed assets (12,803) (12,716)
Cash inflows
Sale of fixed assets . - 2,875
Net cash (outflow) from Capital Activities (12,803) (9,841)
Net cash inflow before Financing 110,773 110,524
FINANCING AND LIQUID RESOURCES
(Increase) in money on call - (150,000)
Cash outflows
Loan repayments made (25,843) (41,188)
Net cash (outflow) from financing and liquid resources (25,843) (191,188)
Increase/(Decrease) in cash 22 84,930 (80,664)

The notes on pages 12 to 19 form part of these unaudited statements.
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Congleton Town Council

Notes to the Accounts

31 March 2020

1 Interest and Investment Income

2020 2019
£ £
Interest Income - General Funds 4,983 3,773
4,983 3,773

2 Agency Work
During the year the Council undertook no agency work on behalf of other authorities.
During the year the Council commissioned no agency work to be performed by other authorities.

3 Related Party Transactions

The council entered into no material transactions with related parties during the year.

4 Publicity

Section 5 of the Local Government Act 1986 requires the council to disclose expenditure on publicity. Details are

shown under the following broad categories:

2020 2019
£ £
Other Advertising 84 130
Marketing/Promotions 3,671 7,090
Council Newsletter 5,325 5,094
Council Website , 1,791 815
10,871 13,129
5 Audit Fees
The council is required to report and disclose the cost of services provided by its external auditors.
These may be summarised as follows:
2020 2019
£ £
Fees for statutory audit services - 2,000 2,000
Total fees 2,000 2,000
6 Members' Allowances
2020 2019
£ £
Members of Council have been paid the following allowances for the year:
Mayors Allowance - 3,000 3,000
3,000 3,000
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Congleton Town Council

Notes to the Accounts

31 March 2020

7 Employees
The average weekly number of employees during the year was as follows:

Full-time
Part-time
Temporary

All staff are paid in accordance with nationally agreed pay scales.

8 Pension Costs
The council participates in the Cheshire Pension Fund.

2020 2019
Number Number
16 16
10 10
26 26

The Cheshire Pension Fund is a defined benefit scheme, but the council is unable to identify its share of the underlying
assets and liabilities because all town and parish councils in the scheme pay a common contribution rate.

Financial Reporting Standard for Small Enterprises (FRSSE), for schemes such as Cheshire requires the council to
account for pension costs on the basis of contributions actually payable to the scheme during the year.

The cost to the council for the year ended 31 March 2020 was £110,657 (31 March 2019 - £105,693).

The most recent actuarial valuation was carried out as at 31st March 2019, and the council's contribution rate is
confirmed as being 21.45% of employees' pensionable pay with effect from Ist April 2020 (year ended 31 March 2020

—20.55%).
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Congleton Town Council

Notes to the Accounts

31 March 2020

9 Tangible Fixed Assets
Operational Operational Vehicles and Infra- Community Total
Freehold Leasehold Equipment structure Assets
Land and Land and Assets
_ Buildings  Buildings - i o

Cost £ £ £ £ £ £
At 31 March 2019 2,238,569 95,000 291,744 90,549 150,396 2,866,258
Additions - - 12,803 - - 12,803
Disposals s F e - - 99
At 31 March 2020 2,238,569 95,000 294,574 90,549 150,396 2,869,088
Depreciation
At 31 March 2019 (460,120) (20,900) (229,379) (77,450) (4,152) (792,001)
Charged for the year (43,429) (1,900) (22,287) (2,586) (584) (70,786)
Eliminated on disposal L ] - 7,656 B - - 7,656
At 31 March 2020 (503,549) (22,800) (244,010) (80,036) (4,736) (855,131)
Net Book Value
At 31 March 2020 1,735,020 72,200 50,564 10,513 145,660 2,013,957
At 31 March 2019 1,778,449 74,100 62,365 13,099 146,244 2,074,257

Although classified as capital expenditure, certain minor equipment purchases are not included in the above as they are
not material in overall value.

Fixed Asset Valuation

The freehold and leasehold properties that comprise the council's properties have been valued as at 31st March 2009 by
external independent valuers, Messrs D Dingle B.Sc. Dip Arch (Hons) RIBA. Valuations have been made on the basis
set out in the Statement of Accounting Policies, except that not all properties were inspected. This was neither practical
nor considered by the valuer to be necessary for the purpose of valuation. Plant and machinery that form fixtures to the
building are included in the valuation of the building.

Assets Held under Finance Agreements
The council holds no such assets.

10 Financing of Capital Expenditure

2020 2019
£ £
The following capital expenditure during the year:
Fixed Assets Purchased 12,803 12,716
12,803 12,716
was financed by:
Capital Receipts - 2,875
Revenue:
Capital Projects Reserve 12,803 4,131
Equipment Replacement Reserve - 5,710
12,803 12,716
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Congleton Town Council

Notes to the Accounts

31 March 2020

11 Information on Assets Held
Fixed assets owned by the council include the following:

Operational Land and Buildings
Congleton Town Hall
Allotments
Operational Land and Buildings
Congleton Paddling Pool
Vehicles and Equipment
Paddling Pool plant and equipment
Christmas Lights
Town Hall Furniture and Equipment
Sundry office equipment
Streetscape Vehicles and Equipment
Infrastructure Assets
Fencing and gates at various sites
Noticeboards and roadsigns
Other street furniture
Community Assets
Council Artefacts & Regalia
War Memorial
Statue - Sergeant Eardley VC
Public Toilets
Land by War Memorial

12 Current Asset Investments

2020 2019
£ £
Cambridge and Counties Bank - Bond 150,000 150,000
CCLA Public Sector Deposit Fund 150,000 150,000

300,000 300,000
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13 Debtors

Debtors Control

Trade Debtors

VAT Recoverable
Prepayments

Accrued Interest Income

14 Creditors and Accrued Expenses

Trade Creditors

Other Creditors

Payroll Taxes and Social Security
Accruals

Accrued Interest Payable

Income in Advance

15 Long Term Liabilities

Public Works Loan Board
Cheshire East Council

The above loans are repayable as follows:

Within one year

From one to two years
From two to five years
From five to ten years
Over ten years

Total Loan Commitment

Less: Repayable within one year

Repayable after one year

Congleton Town Council

Notes to the Accounts

31 March 2020
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2020 2019
£ 2
13,741 12,529
13,741 12,529
10,664 9,031

600 7,118
1,033 1,000
26,038 20,678

2020 2019

£ £

11,164 9,024

10,134 12,251

10,265 0,674

25,026 16,859
) 8.384

2000 -

58,589 56,192
2020 2019
£ £
347,563 355,256

s 18,150

347,563 373,406
2020 2019
£ £

5,436 25,843
5.696 5.436
18,772 17.916
37.760 36,039
279.899 288,172
347,563 373,406
(5436) (25,843

342,127 347,563




Congleton Town Council

Notes to the Accounts

31 March 2020

16 Financial Commitments under Operating Leases
The council had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases of equipment as follows:

2020 2019
£ £
Obligations expiring within one year 1,835 998
Obligations expiring between two and five years 34,278 36,113
Obligations expiring after five years 7 - -
36,113 37,111
17 Deferred Grants
2020 2019
£ £
Capital Grants Applied
At 01 April 1,218,871 1,250,168
Released to offset depreciation (31,297) (31,297)
At31 March 1,187,574 1,218,871
Total Deferred Grants
At 31 March 1,187,574 1,218,871
At 01 April 1,218,871 1,250,168

Capital Grants are accounted for on an accruals basis and grants received have been credited to Deferred Grants
Account. Amounts are released from the Deferred Grants Account to offset any provision for depreciation charged to

revenue accounts in respect of assets that were originally acquired with the assistance of such grants.

18 Capital Financing Account

2020 2019
£ £

Balance at 01 April 381,038 370,800
Financing capital expenditure in the year

Additions - using capital receipts - 2,875

Additions - using revenue balances 12,803 9,841
Loan repayments 25,843 41,188
Disposal of fixed assets (9,973) (14,696)
Depreciation eliminated on disposals 7,656 12,428
Reversal of depreciation (70,786) (72,695)
Deferred grants released 31,297 31,297
Balance at 31 March 377,878 381,038

The Capital Financing Account represents revenue and capital resources applied to finance capital expenditure or for the
repayment of external loans. It also includes the reversal of depreciation to ensure it does not impact upon the amount to

be met from precept. It does not represent a reserve that the council can use to support future expenditure.
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Congleton Town Council

Notes to the Accounts

31 March 2020

19 Revaluation Reserve

2020 2019
£ £
Balance at 01 April 100,943 100,943
Balance at 31 March 100,043 100,943

The revised system of accounting for local councils requires the establishment of a Revaluation Reserve. The balance
on this account represents revaluation of fixed assets since 1% April 2007, less subsequent depreciation charged to
revenue on such revaluation elements. This account will increase or reduce as and when assets are revalued or disposed
of.

20 Earmarked Reserves
Balance at Contribution Contribution Balance at
01/04/2019  to reserve from reserve 31/03/2020

£ £ £ £
Capital Projects Reserves 267,057 53,500 (20,307) 300,250
Asset Renewal Reserves 31,616 5,000 (2,272) 34,344
Other Earmarked Reserves 307,501 114,059 (88,747) 332,813
Total Earmarked Reserves 606,174 172,559 (111,326) 667,407

The Capital Projects Reserves are credited with amounts amounts set aside from revenue to part finance specific
projects which are part of the council's capital programme.

The Other Earmarked Reserves are credited with amounts set aside from revenue to fund specific known commitments
of the council.

The Other Earmarked Reserves at 31 March 2020 are set out in detail at Appendix A.

21 Reconciliation of Revenue Cash Flow

2020 2019
£ £

Net Operating Surplus for the year 117,539 150,354
Add/(Deduct)

Interest Payable 16,589 16,826

Interest and Investment Income (4,950) (3,585)

Decrease in debtors 3,640 5,914

Increase/(Decrease) in creditors 10,781 (35,789)
Revenue activities net cash inflow 143,599 133,720
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Congleton Town Council

Notes to the Accounts

31 March 2020

22 Movement in Cash

2020 2019

£ £
Balances at 01 April
Cash with accounting officers 55 114
Cash at bank - 533,535 614,140

533,590 614,254
Balances at 31 March
Cash with accounting officers 107 55
Cash at bank 618413 533,535
Net cash inflow/(outflow) 84,930 (80,664)
23 Reconciliation of Net Funds/Debt

2020 2019

£ £
Increase/(Decrease) in cash in the year 84,930 (80,664)
Cash outflow from repayment of debt 25,843 41,188
Net cash flow arising from changes in debt 25,843 41,188
Movement in net funds/debt in the year 110,773 (39,476)
Cash at bank and in hand 533,590 614,254
Total borrowings ~ (373,406)  (414,594)
Net funds at 01 April 160,184 199,660
Cash at bank and in hand 618,520 533,590
Total borrowings ~ (347,563) (373,406)
Net funds at 31 March 270,957 160,184

24 Capital Commitments
The council had no capital commitments at 31 March 2020 not otherwise provided for in these accounts.
25 Contingent Liabilities

The council is not aware of any contingent liabilities at the date of these accounts.

26 Post Balance Sheet Events

There are no significant Post Balance Sheet events since the preparation of these accounts, up to the date of their final
adoption (on 23rd July 2020), which would have a material impact on the amounts and results reported herein.
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Congleton Town Council

Appendices
31 March 2020

Schedule of Earmarked Reserves

Capital Projects Reserves

Capital Contingency Fund

Asset Replacement Reserves

Capital Equipment Fund

Other Earmarked Reserves

Elections

Carnival

Crime Prevention/Traffic Calming
Committed Grants
Congleton Partnership
Covid 19

Ancient Treasures
Web Site

Training

Devolved Services
Loan Repayments
Public Toilets

Play Areas

Public Realm

Legal Fees

Christmas Lights
Tourism

Marketing

Congleton Neighbourhood Plan
Cenotaph

Rotary Bonfire
Congleton in Bloom
Civic

TOTAL EARMARKED RESERVES

Appendix A

Balance at Contribution Contribution Balance at
01/04/2019 toreserve from reserve 31/03/2020
£ £ £ £
267,057 53,500 (20,307) 300,250
267,057 53,500 (20,307) 300,250
31,616 5,000 (2,272) 34,344
31,616 5,000 (2,272) 34,344
20,000 20,000
0 0
8,779 (1,422) 7,357
5,577 5,639 (5,577 5,639
68,316 54,503 (68,316) 54,503
50,000 50,000
3,000 3,000
2,651 2,500 5,151
10,000 (1,521) 8,479
0 0
2,655 (2,655) 0
24,012 24,012
0 0
9,188 9,188
5,292 5,292
7,573 417 7,990
10,768 (1,599) 9,169
5,000 5,000
19,690 (7,657) 12,033
100,000 100,000
5,000 5,000
0 0
1,000 1,000
307,501 114,059 (88,747) 332,813
606,174 172,559 (111,326) 667,407
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Congleton Town Council

31 March 2020

Annual Report Tables
Table. 1 — Budget & Actual Comparison

Net Expenditure
Museum Support
Paddling Pool & Play Areas
Allotments
Tourism
Closed Churchyard & Church Clock
Congleton Town Hall
Public Conveniences
Community Safety (Crime Reduction)
Congleton Partnership & Community Development
CTC Streetscape

Net Direct Services Costs

Corporate Management
Democratic & Civic

Net Democratic, Management and Civic Costs

Interest & Investment Income

Loan Charges

Capital Expenditure

Transfers to/(from) other reserves
(Deficit from)/Surplus to General Reserve
Precept on Unitary Authority

Page 21

Budget £ Actual £
4,500 4,500
27,968 27,287
1,250 1,093
38,000 28,705
300 242
74,766 80,898
8,600 11,059
66,150 42,780
186,097 190,477
197,119 167,498
604,750 554,539
148,512 148,092
54,087 52,376
202,599 200,468
(3,000) (4,983)
39,953 42,432
15,000 12,803
24,850 61,233
E—— 17>6@
884,152 884,152




Table. 2 — Service Income & Expenditure

DIRECT SERVICE COSTS
Museum Support}

Paddling Pool & Play Areas
Allotments

Tourism

Closed Churchyard & Church Clock
Congleton Town Hall

Public Conveniences

Community Safety (Crime Reduction)
Grants

Congleton Partnership

Community Development

CTC Streetscape

Congleton Town Council

31 March 2020

Annual Report Tables

DEMOCRATIC, CORPORATE AND CIVIC COSTS

Corporate Management
Democratic & Civic
Civic Expenses

Net Cost of Services

Notes 2020 2020 2020 2019
£ £ £ £
Gross Income Net Net
Expenditure Expenditure Expenditure
4,500 - 4,500 4,500
27,287 . 27,287 26,249
1,283 (190) 1,093 981
40,938 (12,233) 28,705 29,455
242 - 242 235
191,615 (110,717) 80,898 75,265
11,059 - 11,059 8,389
42,780 - 42,780 26,140
73,391 (9,906) 63,485 63,988
79,317 (30,996) 48,321 15,842
78,671 - 78,671 66,871
546,618 (379,120) 167,498 163,034
148,192 (100) 148,092 139,924
45,932 (357 45,575 38,936
6,801 - 6,801 12,936
1,298,626 (543,619) 755,007 672,745
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CONGLETON TOWN COUNCIL

COMMITTEE REPORTS AND UPDATES

COMMITTEE: Finance and Policy Committee

MEETING DATE 2" July 2020 LOCATION Via Zoom
AND TIME 7.00pm

REPORT FROM Cllr Russell Chadwick

AGENDA ITEM 17

REPORT TITLE Proposed Flag Flying Policy for Congleton Town Council

Purpose of the
Policy

The Union flag is one of the best-known national symbols in the world. The Union flag
signifies the unity of the nations that make up the United Kingdom and dependencies,
and demonstrates the bond of citizenship which we all share. Whatever our differences
may be, whatever our faith, culture, political views, ethnicity, first language or traditional
customs, we can all stand beneath this flag united together in common purpose.
Therefore, we would like the Finance & Policy Committee to give due consideration to
this new Flag Flying policy to be adopted in relation to the flying of flags at Congleton
Town Hall and other council owned buildings/flagpoles. The aim is to standardise
procedures and to consult with Councillors on the content of the flag flying policy. The
alternative is not to have a policy in respect of flying flags. This would continue the
uncertainty in respect of which flags can be flown and when. The adoption of the policy
will make it clear which alternative flags can be flown additional to the Union flag.

Flag Flying Policy

Once adopted the day to day management of the flying of flags at Congleton Town
Council will be overseen by the Chief Officer. Any change from the Policy as stated would
be subject to consideration and approval by the Finance & Policy Committee.

The Union Flag will be flown at full mast at the Town Hall on the designated days for
Union Flag flying as recommended by the Government, (flag flying days) with the
additional date of the election of the Congleton Town Mayor in May*. See appendix A for
an indication of what this would mean for Congleton. The Government periodically
updates its list so this needs to be regularly checked by the Town Hall Manager

Note: * = date fixed annually

Flags should be flown at half-mast [i.e. two-thirds of the way up the flagpole, with at
least the height of the flag between the top of the flag and the top of the flagpole] at the
Town Hall on the following occasions:
e From the announcement of the death until the funeral of the Sovereign, except
on Proclamation Day, when they are fully hoisted from 11am to sunset.
e The funerals of members of the Royal Family, subject to special commands from
Her/His Majesty in each case.
e The funerals of Foreign Rulers, subject to special commands from Her/His
Majesty in each case.
e The funerals of Prime Ministers and former Prime Ministers of the United
Kingdom, subject to special commands from Her/His Majesty in each case.
e Any other occasion where Her/His Majesty has given special command.

If a flag flying day coincides with days for flying flags at half-mast, flags should be flown at
half-mast unless special commands are received from Her/His Majesty or Government to
the contrary.




When a flag is to be flown at half-mast it should first be raised all the way to the top of
the mast, allowed to remain there for a second and then be lowered to the half-mast
position.

When it is being lowered from half-mast it should again be raised to the top of the mast
for a second before being fully lowered. When a British national flag is at half-mast, other
flags on the same stand of poles should also be at half-mast or should not be flown at all.
On days that are not subject to the existing flag regulations, the Congleton Town flag,
together with the Union Flag may be flown. Where a building has two or more flag poles
and both flags (Union and Congleton Town Flag are to be flown, the Union Flag will take
precedence i.e. the most superior position.

The Congleton Town Flag should be flown.
1. On the day of the Annual Town Meeting.
2. Annual Council Meeting (Mayor Making)
3. Civic Sunday.
4. Whenever the Mayor holds an official reception and on other occasions
according to local custom.

The Congleton Town flag should be flown at half-mast at the town hall from the day of

death until after the funeral of:

A Member of the Council.

A Mayor of Congleton Town.

An Honorary Burgess of the Town.

A Member of Parliament for the Town.

. A Chief Officer

10. A former Chief Officer/ Clerk **

11. A former member of the Council **

12. A former member of a constituent authority of the Council who represented
Congleton. (Cheshire East Councillor/ Congleton Borough Councillor) **

13. A member of staff who died whilst still in the employment of the Council.

**As notified to the Chief Officer or Town Mayor

[CRC NI Y

If a Union Flag Day occurs on a day when the local authority’s flag is flying at half-mast,
the Union flag will be flown at half-mast in its place.

Other Flags
a. Commonwealth Day, second Monday in March, the Commonwealth Flag will be
flown.

b. The Armed Forces Flag will be flown for one week every year in support of the
nation’s armed forces. The date which is fixed annually to coincide with armed
forces week in June.

c. Remembrance in November; Royal British Legion Remembrance Flag will be
flown from the Launch of the Poppy Appeal until after Armistice Day
(Remembrance Day).

d. Formal visits by other authorities or royal visitors — the Union and the local
authority flag can be flown together with the flag of the visiting authority and/or
the royal visitor (if appropriate).

e. International links/Town Twinning; We fly the flag of these when an official
delegation visits Congleton, for the duration of the visit. E.g. Princess Irene
Brigade.




Questions and
Approvals

The Chief Officer will consider and determine any request to fly a flag on the Town Hall or
other Council owned flagpoles where it is not set out in the Policy. (e.g. International
sporting events). No Flag of a Political nature will be considered. The request must come
from a serving Town Councillor and be made in writing at least 4 weeks before the event.
This decision is final. Any decisions for continued or regular flag flying must be
considered by the Finance & Policy Committee where it is not set out in the Policy.

Questions and Approval

No flag flying activity by, or on behalf of the Council, is to be undertaken without the
approval of the Chief Officer. The Chief Officer will be consulted on all matters relating to
the Flag Protocol and any questions should be submitted in writing to the Chief Officer.

Review

This policy will be reviewed periodically to ensure that it remains fit for purpose.

Note: The Lord Chamberlain’s Department issues a list of Flag Days on which UK
Government buildings should fly the national flag. Whilst Council buildings are not
“Government buildings” in the strict sense, it is sensible for local authorities to follow the
guidance from the Lord Chamberlain’s Department. The guidance does not prevent the
Union flag (or national flag) being flown on any other day that the Council feels
appropriate or desirable.

British Flag Protocol Website: http://www.flaginstitute.org/wp/british-flags/flying-flags-
in-the-united-kingdom/british-flagprotocol

Appendix A - gives Councillors an indication of the regular local and national flag flying
days. Those in blue are the days currently set by the Government as National Flag flying
days, red is local and yellow national days. They are subject to change and so need to be
checked for updates.

Recommendation

To approve and implement the Flag Flying Policy for Congleton Town Council and
add to the Town Council’s constitution.




See Appendix A

Appendix A - INDICATIVE LIST OF REGULAR DATES for flying flag at full mast -Red — Local, Blue —National yellow
special days https://www.gov.uk/guidance/designated-days-for-union-flag-flying needs regular checks.

Date Reason Union Town | Other
Flag Flag
9 Jan Birthday of Duchess of Cambridge T i
20 Jan Birthday of the Countess of Wessex 74 4
27 Jan Holocaust Day o Holocaust Flag
6" Feb Her Majesty’s Accession g V4
19t Feb Birthday of the Duke of York* i v
10" March Birthday of the Earl of Wessex 7 Vi
2" Monday in Commonwealth Day / Commonwealth
March Flag
21% April Birthday of Her Majesty The Queen Vi J
23" April St George’s Day J 7 é
** May Congleton Mayor Making / ‘/
** May/June Congleton Civic Service W 4 L
** June Food and Drink Festival / J
2" June Coronation Day d: .
9t June Official Celebration of Her Majesty’s J o
Birthday
10t June Birthday of the Duke of Edinburgh 7 4 J
215 June Birthday of the Duke of Cambridge . I 4
Last Sat in June | Armed Forces Day o Armed Services
July Congleton Pride ‘/ Rainbow Flag
17 July Birthday of the Duchess of Cornwall J 4
15t August Birthday of the Princess Royal WA J
August Bank Jazz and Blues Festival d J
Holiday
Mid Oct Poppy Appeal Launch until Remembrance / Poppy Appeal
day Flag
11" November | Remembrance Day + 2™ Sunday in Nov & Z.
14" November | Birthday to the Prince of Wales J J
20" November | Her Majesty’s Wedding Day J 7
Half Mast
Reason - death of following — flag to be flown at half-mast Union Town | Other
from notification of the death until day of funeral. Flag

Death of member of Royal Family

Death of Political Leader

- Death of Foreign Leader

National disaster

Member of the Council or former Member of the Council**

Serving Member of Staff or former Chief Officer/Clerk**

Burgess

Serving or former ward councillor for principle authority**

MP

Localised disaster — such as the Manchester bomb
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